

Sen. Cdv. Beatrice Temple - Extracts
from personal diaries:-

1941

Previous
units
M.I.9.K.
M.I.9.C.
(Gen. Duties
+ Messing
Officer)

- No. 10. Was Office interviewed by "delightful" Col. Major - to go at any minute.
- " 20. Posting telegram - "Subm T/Jun. Cdv."
- " 24. Arrived Highwood. DR led to Hill (Waleshill House) - met by "charming" Col. Bayts. Tea with Col. Major who then led the way to Hannington Hall which turns out to belong to friends of a fellow officer. Butler opened door and maid asked if she could unpack ~~my~~ ^{has} cases. (The Fry family still had 14 servants. All but a few left ~~eventually~~ ^{eventually} to engage in war service). Received by Capt. Randell - "pleasant but pompous". Col. Major returned and all had dinner with Frye.
- " 25. ~~Had~~ ^{checked} ~~arrived~~ ^{arrived} ~~her~~ ^{her} up to Hill ~~had~~ ^{had} met Maj. Henderson & Sessini with Capt. Anderson ("Andy") - Camp Commandant collected Office's documents and those of 3 ORs. Met Capt. Osander. Maj. Peltreich returned to H.H. - "not prepossessing".
- " 26. Drove ^{to} ~~to~~ ^{to} Shriverton Garrison to meet Oc. ATS Coy. Returned ^{to} ~~the~~ ^{to} and in w) car ^{was taken} ~~to~~ ^{to} Cheltenham - Group Hqs ATS. Had long talk with Maj. Peltreich ^{after} ~~after~~ ^{after} dinner.
- " 27. To Hill with Maj. P. Sessini with Maj. Henderson + Capt. Anderson - (Came away with ^{copy} ~~copy~~ ^{copy} of Statutory and a type-writer). He much too familiar with ATS ORs. Saw ATS quarters - v. satisfactory.

1941

Tea in Ante Room c. Car. A.M. Frute, joined by
Maj. Henderson & Maj. Bellere

Nov. 28

at 4 p.m.
W) transport + drive to Hunder via London
to drop off Maj. P. Fryd ^{drive} did not know the way
and had ^{lost} way in London in the dark. ^{Had to contact me}
Contacted Police and arrived at 11.30 p.m.
Maj. Whiteborn + Capt. Ward supplied ^{as we} transport
for drive to hotel 7 miles away. ^{from} ^{Friday}

" 29

Bachelors Hall - ^{spent much} going through files with
Maj. Whiteborn ("very pleasant and
reasonable - knows administration"). ^{sets up} to
Norwich in Hel car - ^{with} Div. Hel & Capt.
Knight, G.3 ^{and} Eleanor Norman - Butler
at Hut ^{at 6.30} ^{to} see Bolton - ^{see} Gie ("sombre
woman, imagine very efficient but never
a laugh"). To class, via Cambridge, ^{during} c
Maj. Whiteborn as IO did not turn up - ^{OK}

" 30

W) transport from Haverhill to Reggate
to receive files from Lady Carlisle, ^{to}
Egham OETU (at ^{the} ^{Bankers} ^{Edie's} ^{more}
^{helpful} - ^{interviewed} ^{me} ^{originally} ^{for}
^{Commission} ⁱⁿ ^{June})

DEC.

1

Haverhill to Doncaster in Maj. Whiteborn's
car. Saw Pye + Cullerton (veteran taken
by "c", cheerful + keen". Spoke to Maj. W.
about lack of organization at Hel.

2/3

2/3

Overnight London. W.O. Hobart House
interviews with A616(O). Returned HH via
Hel.

4.

Day at Hel - took over all files from "Andy"
Telephoned Maj. W. to send BMC on Monday.

1941 Dec. 6

Capt. Haston sent 12 maps.

8 Swindon to pick up "little Cullen" - ~~met~~ ~~seems pleasant and willing~~ Handed over files.

9 Call from AG 15. Capt. Haston supplied cov. Saw CRO then long session at AG.18 ^{+ DUV.} followed by AG 15. ~~where drafted note.~~ Back to CRO to interview "Cullen's creature Drey, ~~(possibility for Drey)~~ ^{sees.} ~~visited old flat and returned~~ HH-20401 - Capt. R + C still working!

10 Drweto and continued work at ~~left HH-20401~~ 10.50 - lunch between Dyle, Woz + Dumotable ^{tea} CH for Bachelors Hall + Capt. Ward. Overnight ^{4.50} Hundon (Rose + Green)

11 BH - "broke down" files all day. ^{work completed by 6 pm} ("little C" went back to billet for lunch). ^{lunch with Capt. Ward.} Overnight Hundon.

12 BH - dictated letters for "little C" - off with Maj. Whitebon ^{at 11.0} to Canterbury (Paddock + Graham) & ~~Heathfield~~ ^{to ?} ~~Heathfield~~ (White, Thompson + Wynne) Overnight Tunbridge Wells.

13 Drweto D.V. had up by Redcaps for 40mph in controlled area. ^{at 11.0} T. Well (Richardson) W. Guistead (Richardson + Treaskis) E. Guistead (Curtis alone). ^{lunch @ 12.00 then to} Winchester (Vaile + Dicker). Salisbury (Holmes alone). ^{to} To Capt. Hall - Hall's house for talks (Mr. Murch-Mason there). To Winchester overnight. Capt. Fraser very helpful at E. Guistead.

1941

DEC 14
(Sunday)

Returned Highworth ^{with} Maj. W saw Colonel ^{lunched} ^{at} (Home Guard etc) ~~lunched~~. Returned ^{at} ^{the} (Capt. R. not v. welcoming as usual). Drove in van all the way to Hurdon (nervous - ~~struck~~ ^{arrived all day} ^{by} (Maj. W + Capt. W) Billeted to St. Yeldham - met Capt. Cheide. O/W & A.

h arrived in
dark - picked
up

15

Worked a bit at BH. In van car set off with Maj. W. for Halshead (Ward + Browne) ^{on to} Hatfield Peverell (Kelli Hill - "affected little thing") ^{lunched at with an} Thornham Magna (Whitney + Bromley ~~very close~~). Return BH for more work ("lutee & as it all day!") Overnight St. Yeldham. (White Hart)

16

B. Hall to Lincoln with Maj. W (Alexander + ~~lunched~~ ^{lunched} Gunter - "nice but nothing outstanding as I had been led to expect by Capt. Hall-Hall")
Returned B. Hall and then ^{lunched at} St. Yeldham - ^{met} Maj. W + Capt. W. ^{near} Ward + Browne ("am amazed at Mr. W - so nice marrying Capt. W!")

After lunch

17

B. Hall - worked on "Instructions for ATS Officers" - ^{lunched & Capt. W - Maj. W @ Highworth} Pte. Drey arrived for voice test - "nervous but thought improved on acquaintance". Mrs. M ^{much} ^{ask} to arrive later. Overnight London.

18

(Aunt's funeral) Left by train for Newcastle - 11.40 very tedious journey - 1 1/2 hours in complete darkness & ~~void~~.

1941 Dec. 19

Edinburgh OCTU - greeted with news Cullen's
See candidate - discussion with senior ATS staff

20 Returned
to London
O/N

Overnight Karpis ~~at Eastern Hotel~~. O/N

21

Train to Haverhill via ^(Rose + Crown) Marks Tey. Letters
from B. Hall brought by DR. Maj. W. + Capt. W. out. 3

22

Picked up for B. Hall. Mrs. Hilliers + Pte. Brown
for tests. Capt. Chide + Maj. W. ^{to sea} Returned
Haverhill. O/N.

23

left 10.20 Highway ^{EBC} - lost way in Hitchin -
reached CH at 4.30. All away ^{but through Hemel Hempstead} except
Capt. Oxenden. On to HH - ^{Clara + H. W. + ...} both new
and all ORs.

(on leave)

30

~~with car to~~ ^{to 29th} Salisbury - dropping RC at ~~Bulford~~ ^{Bulford} -
for Senior ATS Officer's Conference. ^(SATSO) Bulford ^{on way back - sat in car}

1942

Jan. 1

Adj. Holmes - a - ^{us up leave} Curt - Return to HH. ^{Maj. W. with} ^{Clara - left him} ^{E. Maj. Roberts}
Canterbury - (Kames + Graham + Paddock) O/N

2

Back to Hut ^(Graham + Paddock) then on to White + Thompson?
Severalls - ^{vap} hunt for ATS ^{was there} moved to T. Wells.
T. Wells - called Group Hll ATS - ^{found} hut locked
Borden mt. ^{mt} Healfield (Read + Files)
(Capt. Armstrong, Canadian Hll). Had to
return to T. Wells but arrived in Lewes
So went home for night. Div. E. Slight RA.

3.

^{W) train + div to} ~~London~~ Wells - Borden found Hut open
this am. Went to ~~the~~ CSO's office (Maj.
Ireland) to report matter. E. Guistead (Curtis)
^{+ lunch}

1942

Pleasant tea c
Seavey has nice
husband.

Jan. 3 contd. Called on SE Command Hq saw ADATS. Overnight
Canterbury M.C.T.C.

4
5
10
9 at. See work completed by 110
asked to lunch May. 11th down
Eustace Macurell, Andy, Co.
Col. Beatts, Capt. Harston
Mrs. Frutley
much amused by Marmalade
played chess
little "Eustace"
Maj. Macurell
R

Return HH. Pleasant talk with Maj. Pettisid
largely about perimeters - "much more
amusing aspects than on first visit was
but also when Capt. R. not there".

To CH with Maj. P. ^{to see Col. but did not answer}
^{HH Maj P} very amusing, friendly
& helpful - lending his house for
interviews in London on 13th - really
improves enormously on acquaintance!

HH - Maj. P. wrote to "Andy" about ^{to go}
"receptable for marmalade" letter ^{to see Col. but did not answer}
^{to see Col. but did not answer} ^{to go}

BC to CH to do Pt. III ^{orders me persuaded Andy to}
Wicheste. (Davis) ^{helped them but} Found with 2 men ^{to HH.}
who had come to complain about inter-
ference - put them on to Hunder. ^{to HH.}
Return HH. ^{Say Camp Comd. about Baymings of Willets} Capt. Collyer
visited.

HH - Capt. Collyer's + Childer + Capt. Hall
Hall. ^{visited} Stayed to dinner.

HH - Capt. Hall - Hall to tea - left c leaking radiator
that to be rescued.
more friendly than before. 13th ^{Jan} to London -
interviewed "little" Cole + Mrs. Parthen and
Mrs. Rance (Maj. P's ^{hunts tea his} house) Overnight in hotel.

14. Interviewed Mann + Carver at Club.
visited W0 (Nobart House) - v. helpful.

Stc B.T.
D. Edwards
1942

Jan. 15

Returned HH worked until 7.30 then ^{with BMC} to Henderson's ^{dinner} ~~at~~ ^{film} ~~at~~ ^{at K}

Jan. 16

To Htl (5.45) with BC. 3 ATs given ^{dinner} ~~at~~ ^{at K} + pay

17

Capt. Bucknall ~~at~~ at HH.

19

BC to Shrewsbury to collect documents
(May P. "very pleasant - really like him a
lot" - being doing X-work together for a
while ^{dinner} ~~at~~ ^{at K}).

20

Capt. Randell arrived Swindon (after dinner)
I have Rak (Swindon) there about 9 pm "looked
better, very friendly and cheerful".

21

Car & Capt. R to CH - walked and the
Early dinner at CH then a concert. "Andy" made
his smoke and drink! Afterward he, Capt.
R. & BT went to Colonel's room to discuss
the AT Mess - decided to try HH vicarage.

22

^{with} Andy + May. ^{Anderson} ~~Hatton~~ to see Mrs Bouverie -
vicarage off. Col. now been on HH. Returned
to HH ~~at~~ "braved Mrs. Fry" - quite amenable. When
Mr. F. threw a heart attack so naturally
explained if we stay ^{ATs Order} ~~at~~ ^{at K} ~~at~~ ^{at K}
to Cheltenham - ATs Htl - all v. helpful.

23

Handed BC over to Andy to go up to London. ^{Went}
May. ^{Anderson} ~~Hatton~~ to look at houses in Farnridge
and area - too small. The younger Mrs
Bouverie found stuck on a steep hill in
her 2-seater - 1 Swedish pushing - ~~at~~ ^{at K} ~~at~~ ^{at K}
and Mrs. Duv. added more strength but
needed 2 more soldiers to get her up!

Dr Br
D. R. East
5

1942
Jan 31

~~see~~ alone) Stayed at Cole's house of N

Contd.

Feb

Wrote
Waikiki for
30 years

(COP's
temperature
higher - to
Division
ATS Hosp. accord
by BC.

after

Refused

9

10

11

12

13

14

16

1 ^{Worried} ^{(Hose Cartridge) the} ^{packed up} ^{Cent. Coleman's and} ^{in to}
 TO Lincoln ^(Foster & Fieldyard) and ^{Manchester} of N
 2 Pye + Hay - Whiting) - to York (N. Cind. Hill and
 also visited ADATS (Wagstaff) of N.
 3 ^{met} ^{Arrived} ⁴ ⁵ ⁶ ⁷ ⁸ ⁹ ¹⁰ ¹¹ ¹² ¹³ ¹⁴ ¹⁵ ¹⁶ ¹⁷ ¹⁸ ¹⁹ ²⁰ ²¹ ²² ²³ ²⁴ ²⁵ ²⁶ ²⁷ ²⁸ ²⁹ ³⁰ ³¹
 Lady Swinton - AT Welfare - On train with
 Col. Deakin - Command Welfare ^{changed}
 train ^{arrived} ⁴ ⁵ ⁶ ⁷ ⁸ ⁹ ¹⁰ ¹¹ ¹² ¹³ ¹⁴ ¹⁵ ¹⁶ ¹⁷ ¹⁸ ¹⁹ ²⁰ ²¹ ²² ²³ ²⁴ ²⁵ ²⁶ ²⁷ ²⁸ ²⁹ ³⁰ ³¹
 "Smother" and ^{arrived} ⁴ ⁵ ⁶ ⁷ ⁸ ⁹ ¹⁰ ¹¹ ¹² ¹³ ¹⁴ ¹⁵ ¹⁶ ¹⁷ ¹⁸ ¹⁹ ²⁰ ²¹ ²² ²³ ²⁴ ²⁵ ²⁶ ²⁷ ²⁸ ²⁹ ³⁰ ³¹
 Wilham (^{White} ^{H. Peverell}) ^{Harz} ^{changed} ^{got} ^W ^{ear} -
 4 H. Peverell (Lloyd, Burbage & Richardson
^{Back to Wilham for lunch & Maj. Winterton} ^{Back to London to arrive}
^{General Morgan} ^{Maj. Winterton}
 station to London overnight stay.
 5 Interviewed Badgeron (^{missy}) and Wood -
 ("Swinton") at ^{H. Peverell} ^{arranges} ^{tomorrow} ^{To}
 W.O. + request for Khaki side hats ^{not} ^{impr.} ^{Overnight}
 6 Interviewed, at Club, "delightful" J. Camp-
 bell + "valuable high boot" Miss Lawrence +
 Miss Bird + Mr. Mc Dornell of N (Home unie 9th)
 9 Interviewed Swinton - note from BC to buy
 desk clocks + meet Pt. Sander. Colonel
 leaving - ^{being} ^{replaced} ^{by} ^{Lord} ^{Glauk};
 10 Mr. Fowler came to H.H. to help move some furniture ^{around}.
 11 Sent for by Col. M. ^{hatched} ^{cit} ⁺ ^{to} ^{meet} ^{H.G.} ("tall, silly
 face") Sgt. Sanderson applied for commission
 who thought suitable. To be reported in a
 month's time. The two Colonels came over to H.H. ^{after} ^{tea}.
 12 BC to Swinton to try for Cutlery - no luck. The
~~Camp~~
 13 Shopping - new men in Oxford + Fasujin
 14 BC to ^{cd} ^g ^{ag}
 16 Sales busy - ATS Serv. Officer Conf. To Blandford
 Cong. H.H. - ^{Miss} ^{Hughes} ^{+ 2} ^{telephone}
 stayed over night at Camp
 moved Tony. Rgt. beyond Tarrant - Hinton. of N.

Feb 42

1942

- Feb 17 Blandford - Div. Hq. - Unsatisf. letter - asked Price to find better. Back to Hq via Salisbury. ^(Camp Commandant Michael Price)
- 18 London - CRO - (Drey ~~with base~~) - W.O. ^{to explain} ^{arrived} ^{up on the parts} ^{John's Fund} ^{Back to Hq} ^{arrived}
- 21 CH - Andy, Capt. Collings, Messing Cpl. Maj. P. (i.e. Capt. Frigate) + said goodbye to Col. M. G. Stayed to lunch - great crowd of Home Guard - ^{replied to Hq with a telegram} Went to Cheltenham Hq - promised 3 clerks ^{in the 4th}.
- 22 No office work ^{staff car} not even J. B.C. ^(betwixt, medals, choc. etc.)
- 23 Andy - CRO re Drey - Invt. Newcastle Fund ^{take some help in weeping down} to Canterbury - (Graham in hut - Paddock & Davis in letter - had all to dinner). ^{UP} [Uncle William got Canterbury] ^{ON}
- 24 Challock ^{called in Cart, Fraser away - also visited G.P. Hq.} the 1. Wells saw Maj. Dawson G.P. ^(7:30) Heartfield + home.
- 25 E. Guistead - (Dunne + Richards). W. Guistead - (Purves - Smith + Richards) ^{Smith + Purves} ^{Mv. Mndk Masan} Coley has not failed OETU. Belle @ Blandford
- 26 Andy at Hq in all-respect inspection. ^{with possible two} ^{sympathetic help} off to Maj. Henderson's ~~party~~ ^{party} dinner at CH 9pm. "Mad as we" to London 11pm. - Cabaret Club - returned Hq 7am. ^{in a party - Tracey - Stewart, Williams, + B.C.}
- 28 BC 48 hrs. leave - Fetched to CH for talks about Clerks i.e. Lord G. + Col. Bayly. ^{Direct} ^{interviewed} No. 1 will send Clerks. Reading - "in Cadet Board Office" ^{Back to 4pm} CH - Maj. Henderson (just leaving) ^{Teacher} - Capt. Harston. Collected ration's laundry + much + returned Hq. met Andy in Farthing, for my leave - talked)

(19) Had to send wire immediately wire to OETU. ^{Chris postponed} ^{Telephone} ^{arrived} ^{Collings at Hq} ^{Wire from Drey - will come.} ^{left} ^{4pm}

Started Hq at 4.15 arrived 7.15

May.

- 1 Col. Beyts at HH. - entirely new arrangements made for Drey.
- 2. Maj. Whitebon at HH. going almost at once - Possibility that number of ATS may be cut down to 30. Think we should get Boitel-Gee.
- 3 Maj. W + Maj. P. have agreed on only 30 ATS.
- 4 Regate - (Lady Carlisle sick) - saw Sub. - helpful. CSO's office "You're the Queen - bee of the hush-hush party" Worked at Swindon for Col. Beyts and discussed possible change of policy.
- 7 Blandford - lashed in at billet, then Hut (lunch) - hut again and to billet hunt - mostly fruitless. Home via Salisbury + Marlborough (denier) (Capt. R. at Salisbury all day)

(9) arranged men + Ditching of nit.

- 8 Hel Party - just discussed syllabus for Course with Maj. Peterick, ^{James with} Col. Majr, Maj. P., Col. Beyts, Andy, new Col., Capt. Harston + Randall + Mike Henderson + Capt. Tracey.
- 10 Shrewsbury - ^{opened account at Nagli + purchased} called on Barack Warden + chairs, rugs + wpbs delivered HH Gate. ^{Supplies}

- 11 Drey arrived HH + furniture.
- 13 ^{Arr. passage of placing officers} HH with Drey - Maj. P. - new OC. ^{Super he runs - she has weasels} ^{Intentional story} Sup. Capt. Jones + new MTO - ^{went down v. well.} Capt. Crowley. Maj. Whitebon

(12) with BC in stove + seen ice - covered - hot
(14) Hot pond where saw C.O. + G.I.
~~W. made up~~
note: [scribbles]

- 15 + Jones at HH - told of awful version of Col's decision ??? Horrified.
- Letter of protest to Col. Beyts ?? (Any connected premises remark?) Maj. P. leave 17th. Boitel-Gee arrived at HH.

- 16 R6 to Hel - interviewed by 2 Cols. - Boitel ^{called} ~~to~~ 15
C.O. wants Course made to last a week.
^{John Cullinagh} Capt. Cullinagh, Tracey + Maj. Whitebon. ^(short lecture on map reading)
Successful billet hunt for B-6 with Capt. Osender.

1942

Mar. 17

Col. Beyts & Maj. W. at CH - Course NOT lengthened. Andy (nee Tele.) believed us with going to Cuesett 2/sub. Cole arrived with RSM. Starnach + Muck-Masa (for First Course at HH)

18

Opening address 5 minis. - BC ^{took over m?} - BT "nature of work" - Col. Beyts (a few words) - BT Pay Alice. Capt. Osender lectured 5-7. Saw Cadets and arranged postings.

19

BC - Pt. II Orders - Clavin's Test - Charles & dog Books - Practical Map Reading with BT invited. Capin's Test from 6-7.

20

Mess Bill' & away they went! Maj. Harsh to Alder master to select class - chose newest recruit. Clifford, Beck & Parker arrived.

21

"Much slower lot than last - not such good manners + how did Clifford pass voice test - can't think"! Opening address followed by Charles R. ^{joined by} Col. Beyts

22

Course during Tests - Charles R. map reading after lunch - evening Test. Off tomorrow ^{us}

23

~~Porter to see Mr. Beyts.~~ Col. B. at HH + asked about promotion of BC. SAOC Maj. Smith - Pigg St - determined to give us another bath! Salisbury - Hut + billet. Blandford - Hut - great gathering - Maj. W. Capin's ~~Hut~~ ^{Inns} + Hall - Hall - Mr. Muck-Masa + wife - Kaine. "Very glad I went down to B. today - a psychological moment to arrive at Hut!"

24

~~Blair~~ Div. Hel then long session in Mr. Brown after lodging BTB - Maj. B. there - all allces. at his finger tips - agreed entry to & th.

8th B.I.
D. Embrey.
1942 7
Mar. 24th cont.

Dorchester + Harston (No. 3 TC - 3 possibilities as Ordeley). Left of HH. Col. Beyts to explain decision on FV (27th). !??

25 Interviews (3) at Harwood - over Dulthie. Retd. HH

24th Col. Beyts - CH - establishment to be cut down - Maj. Harston - Sanderson - Capt. Anderson + his successor ("dull + anti-AT at first meeting") BC + Gray off on leave.

30 Car arrived at HH laden with equipment - ^{distributed at} Reg'ate (White + Thompson) handed over equip. Challock - but closed. ^{Tracked} chased down hill in Wye - (Adams - Beck). Cantemey overnight

31 via Ferry
from Sidmouth

up to Hut (Paddock + Graham). H. Peverell - (Burbage had left) - Colchester (~~M. ...~~) ^{overnight} (Maj. Maswell "passing through")

Apr

1. Halstead - (Whitney + Clifford). Hurdon - Maj. Jones - Capt. Oakley - Capt. Shanks + M.V.M.M. - discussed "wedding - rit." BSE and (after great hunt) Thornham Magna (Hill + Rowles) - move equipment. Norwich ^(unofficial) - Capt. Cullings + Shanks + Oakley in Hut. Burbage there - ^{head above} lack of Security.

2 Capt. Cullings has had further proof of Burbage's lack of Security - C.M.P. Bishop Stamford to find way to 11 Corps. ^{Returned to} Hill to see Powell-Gree (saw Mary Burton - CR's Secy). On leave tomorrow. Head up to Miles day Permit

7 Called in to see Bank in Dewes + Manager Review of H. Guard Course at Cotswell!

10 "Run in" by stern + stupid young P. Steamer in Basning Stoke who thought GPO address

1942

16th Apr
Capt. C. arrived - to Staffed
(map & diary, Pay Office) - to
Barnsley (Gloves) Overnight

15th Set off for
A.A. Schuster in B'ham - Overnight
Atter & Brig. Heo.

- Apr. 10 contd. Bogus + took me to Police Sta for "Justice
enquiry". Returned to HH.
- 11 ^{with} Capt. Collings to Linton - WO (A.15). Return
HH by Train.
- 12 ~~Business~~ Talk with Col. Baylts at CH. ^{Interviewed} Sgt. Young -
_{not suitable}
- 13 Briefed SP District Hqs - Col. Starnach re
new post. Hildyard arrived at HH.
- 14 Drove to Wincaster - Hut full of work -
men - Billie reported all gone to Serlett -
acceptor. ^{my direct to Saltyer} (Astley Cooper + Holmes -
want to be Platoon officers) - Blandford
(Ellis-Hughes + much. Mason + ~~Mr. Bess~~ ^{Mr. Bess})
Major Jones joined HH. ^{HH to Midlands, returned to HH.} ^{Capt. Baylts} ^{16th April}
Barnsley (~~Staffed~~) (Pye + Hay - Windsor) - ^{Director} ^(Wants)
Whiting (Fox) - left 3.40 HH 8.10.
London - Sgt. Thomas + Pte. Shaw with Maurice
Harrod. Overnight London.
- 21 Reg'ate - all well at Haul. E. Gunstead -
(Curtis + Seaver, had a v.w.) W. Gunstead -
(only Purve - Smith) Home for night.
- 22 Heartfield (all well) Tun. Wells (Alexander
alone - did Cycles with her). Challock
explained new policy to Richardson.
Hillier (? Challock ~~was~~ asked about change
to Ach - Ach - G.3.1 ? Challock. Conkerley -
(Kaine's) On stay.
- 23 (Kaine's + Graham) - Installation of Uncle
at Cartedrae. H.H 10.35.
- 24 Cadets (3) arrived for Cruise. Charles R.?
lecture. C.O. came into Ox's lecture
- 25 Hqs to see Maj. Harston re Capt. Baylts.
planned to tell Capt. W-B to put us equipment.

~~16~~
15
14
18
Shaw
Maurice
Richardson's notes

2c BT
D. Entine
1942
(8)

1 GOT logged with Capt. W-B who was charged to be trying to be very offensive but BT tried to laugh it off, telling Capt. Tracey he was anti-AT.

Apr. 26 Cheltenham (ATS HQ) - To see about new job for BC and Drey. Maj. Hartman's Sherry Park.

28 Htl for breakfast 0830. (Charles has his majority). Conference - ^{with comments by} 10s ^{about} Significance - Fight for ATS which was already lost?? Practice a set after lunch.

29 Winchester - found Htl empty - waited until Strachan arrived - then to hotel (Decker + Vail) Htl to see G.2.0 Maj. White. Htl for dinner to meet new RE. Subalter^{??}

MAY 1 Car to Swindon - London - ^{Tracey to} Redhill Regate (White & MM arrived) Col. Dyal - Grant re Sanitary arrangements. Spike to AG 16 re BC ^{HH} Interview tomorrow. Got job?

3 Farewell party for BC at HH - Col. Lady Glanville - Mr. Fry - Maj. + Mrs. Hartman - Capt. + Mrs. Osender, Capts. Tracey + Tallant, Joan ^{Birtel} + Mary Burton.

4 BMC departed (with some difficulty??) at 0930. To Shrewsbury to Rit met 2 ORs. and select furniture etc. for Anteroom. Pownall, Curtis, Norman - Butler + Thompson arrived for Cruise.

6. Took above to London. To AG.18 + AG.15. To T. Wells (Gunter) Maj. Gundy. E. G. G. to Canadian Unit ^(Maj. Gundy) then home ^{URWIN}

7 Through London to H. Peir. + Halstead. Townham via London - long talk with Capt. Oakley - Micky. Blame too valuable to be moved.

8 Norwich - found all 3? Eleanor had written to Maj. Collins asking not to be taken away. Capt. Knight - G.I.I. arrived. Lincoln - found

1942

Dunsmuir Co. ← Capt. W-B very much more
humor. Both Co she very out of place
about the unit. Dotted here and there -
Capt. W-B - got it more by sense than by handle!

May 8 Sunday. May. C. in bed in Hut! - Tried to persuade me
not to move Eleanor ~~Wright~~ + Campbell) OK.

Dunsmuir - Whiting + Dillie. Overnight
Ray May. Jones + arranged to meet. Drive
to Huntington + had long talk in car.
Returned HH after lunch.

Cheltenham to offer surplus Officers -
Was E. Stab. Committee questions necessity of
Snr. Cds. Ch. Cmdt. wants to know if the
Snr. Cds. need be too.

13 ^{T. Vain} York met by Capt. Shanks. Sgt. Dalton
Hill - met top brass. O'Leary stay.

~~Overnight. Dando + selected to the Staff~~

15 HH - worked all evening.

16 White - Barden - Richardson + Kauri arrived
in Cruise.

17 Colonel at HH - Oxo-map reading. ? Jey left.
had appeared

18 London - AB. 15 - GNC (May. Feeney) in ^{Order} ^{HH}
staggered by ^{Order} ^{HH}

19 Conf. ^(AP) at Salisbury. Command. Ray + Mark ^{Return} ^{HH}
(May. Mather) about civilian claims. Winchester.

Hut empty - to lorry - back to Hut with
the 3 (D+V). Back to Salisbury - Blandford
(Pte. Bear) on to Hut (Ellis Hughes + Britton) ^{of} ^{8/19}

20 W. Guistead - (Janet + Hazel) Return HH.

21 Saw Charles on his way (+ Mr. Forbes Hill)

22 HH - rewriting "Instructions". Rang Col. Beyle -
Car sent to collect tape typewriter - kept duplicate - "I have got white
NORCS men available - has put in a ^{mind}
strong plea "Not only do we want a Senior ^{if we keep}
Comdr. - we want the Staff." ^{it too}
^{Monday}

? Healyfield, Major Randall + Jones + Capt.

Frazz at Hut. T. Wells - Challock -

Canterbury on etc. Troops everywhere

E. Guistead - Canadian Corps gone - taken over by British. Home of N

(10) Capt. Crowley's unit
part of their charts
to
Dunsmuir at
HH
Capt. W-B
+ became much
more human

Part @ HH - "Fast very quiet all day"
who we most pleased in the
conference (some to party) +
noting some duplication.

Office
with
"Marcus"
demanding
back typewriter
+ glasses.

26 Raylate
Members
disappointed
20 and change
of policy.

ST. Schat.
Days
1942

May 27

Canterbury - (Wendy + Rami + Graham - Paget off-duty) On to London overnight ^{DAN'S Fund. can't see it!}

28 1. Harrod's ^{Club} - (Sgt. Ellis + Evans). Returned HH. 1.40am

29. Course - Lloyd, Whiting, Ellis. Hughes + Decker. Oxo-map reading. Pt. II Oldes. ^{Had to write up Charles R. remains of Higgins StC.}

31 Cheltenham ATS Hqs - To take civilians NOT ORs. Hope to have ^{fund} solution to Establishment question.

June

1 Regtate planned to say Canterbury were homeless. Set off at 3 (Col's car) with ration + bedding.

Graham + Paget going to spend night in Huty. + feed in "A" Mess. Overnight stay ^(Crash warning "Tugboat Annie" 4 bombs in cellar)

2 ATS Coy. will take GP. Car broke down at an Old Depot! Put on train for London.

3 Train back to Swindon - ^{was used as} HH Sig's. Offices to be vetted.

4 Doncaster ^{on car} - No ATS at hut - taken to "B" Mess - dumped equipment + left.

5 S. Dalton (Col. Devereux - JIC McKenley will take ATS) On way to hut saw Capt. ^{Shank's} lunch - ^{supposed to} Market Weights + then up a tree to broadcast both to Doncaster ^{"Belinda calling"}. ^{Mr. Ratcliffe with Wraith}

6. Returned HH. Cross letter from Maj. Colling!

9/10 Norwich (on car). Passed + talked to Maj. Jones. Hut aft. dinner - only Waddy (Col) then ^{of hater 1922} Cole + BT spoke to Waddy over Pt. from some distance. Back to hut at 9.30 pm - incessant activity until Jan Colonel looked in at height of it - Parked up at 0430. Left at 2 + returned HH at 11pm.

1942

- June 12. Long session with Charles at Hll - tried to pin him down to circular letter saying ATIS can't be allotted to Statun's. No good! Messed Col. Bayts + new Lt. who had gone to Hll.
- 13 Cruise - Paget - Ronald + Brian arrived.
- 14 Charles at Hll for lecture - shown draft letter from me to IOs - no permanent allotting - it was cut down and addressed to individual before ~~it~~ could ^{be} sent ~~it~~. Oxo + lecture - BT after tea ^{at 6:10} To Harbours (Sherry) to meet Col. Douglas - Intertus
- 16 Salisbury - ATIS SO Conf. Col. Morris from Record Office. June met the Crawleys.
- 17 Capt. ~~Bayts~~ rang re moving the ATIS (All not amicable)
- 18 Car to Highworth - taken by Staff Car to CH where Colonel + Capt. Crawley got in - to London (at new speed limit of 40 mph!) First inter view (McGarry) never came. 2nd not suitable - no one suitable from AOR. ^{Rebel HH}
- 20 Regate (Thompson + White) E. Guistead (sewer alone) saw Lady Carlisle - Home of N.
- 26 Healeyfield (only Bardin). TW - (Alexander + Badger) Hazel (w. Guistead at Hll).
- 27 ^{at Hll} Capt. Coswell - Rogers + MM) ~~visited~~ visited Hll + chose a letter. Hll BGS, G.I.I. Col. Bayts party - then back to London by train - arrived 11.20 - overnight.

Handed CH Col. Crawley
copy of IS - all please
RAF
dance

29
30
To Tamworth
in car
DN

Jul 1 Interview Cpl. Norris? at Kings X Stn. Train to Edinburgh (Capt. Hally ~~to~~ to site (Mr. Thurnit - Sigs.) Searched for letters - no luck. ^{Miss G.I. Thurnit} B Hll - G.I.I sent us to Chms. of N.

2nd

BAT
D. Es (10)
1942

Jul. 3

Return to London by train + HH. Battle with C. Cudde. over transport + ATS unhappy.

4. Hackwood (2), Shaw, Jensen + Thomas arrived for Cruise. Maj. Jones at HH. to discuss + arrange postings. (Had to send for MM who had been seen in Staff Cas in London).

"new" G.I. ??

5. Posting Orders mt. Charles R. map reading. G.I. bounced with demand for circular letter that ATS must move - agreed. Showed him C.C.'s letter about Discipline. Brought 2 Civil signs for us. Phone calls from Capt. Childs + Capt. Frazer to protest about move.

6. Charles came over to say that C.O. has vetoed on circular letter re move.

7. Train to London to interview Pk. Moss but she had gone on leave to St. Ives. Conference with DATS. Return HH.

8. To Hq. Saw all 3 DATS + Maj. Harston. Went to Camp Commandant + asked if he would come to see the C.O. Charles + Maj. Jones also present. All went well. Tred Colonel S. Command's secret short Conference about establishments - am to stop recruiting! Afternoon on range with all weapons. Interviewed Moss after tea - passed test. Tash has back to HH.

9. Car + drive to Norwich. Maj. Collings mt - phoned + suggested I interviewed a young widow of 21 - "a kindness to give her something to do" - no. Committee Op.

1942
Jul

- 10. Breakfast Mo - Cole + May. C. - to new site. Gunter - shattered about Swith Comes. Met young widow - all in Van. To Monham - Seaver + Clifford - H. Peverell found Capt. children. Bradley. On to Halstead - picked up Michie + saw site. Found a hellet. Back to Colechester. O/N.
- 11. Met Capt. Childe in Sudbury. On to BSE - entire day spent in looking for hellets. Slept in car on way to Prain-tree.
- 12. Regate - to Cruise house with Thompson - left after a few words about mobility, of H/H.
- 14. Oxford - in an car. Group Hel very helpful as were Coy. ~~from whom~~ with store. Return H/H to witness Pearce, Plater + ? Fides - Wait (one to W/O). All 3 passed.
- 15. Car + driver - Regate - Capt. Frase. Photographs in garden. Dinner (Pye + Campbell in hut c 3 ORs. Busy night. May. Collings arrived + ^{BT was} sent off ^{with} ^{car} at 4.30am. O/N.
- 16. Doncaster. O/C ATS Coy. said Cole was too young for a mixed mess. On to S. Dalton - Capt. Farver - long talk about Tom Shanks + complete lack of security at the Hel. To York. O/N.
- 17. Swith Comes ^{Wue} Capt. Farver - 2 x 6. IIs and a G.II.1 - Jellison ^{Tom} ^{going direct to ATS offices about hellets.} Capt. Prodie. Look at Hellet - Return to Darlington O/N.
- 18. Northampton - ATS Depot - explained about Orders for BSE - Returned Hel.

BT
D.E. (11)
1942

- 19 Saw Col. at Heli about Security at S. Dalton and Cape. Farves. Authority given to enter last 3 civilians. Saw Maj. Jones also.
- 21 Joan Bate - see to dinner H.H. discussed two failed TTS.
- 22 ~~See~~ ^{See} ~~Ing~~ ^{Ing} ~~ham~~ - O/C Barracks. chat of drawers promised. ENBA Concert at Heli followed by dinner - very of Signal Officer called in to Heli by Maj. Jones.
- 23 Saw her comment to Heli re TTS. Heli rang at 6pm. - Wire porting ~~has~~ ^{has} to C.O.D., G.R.B. In 2a ^{1/2} Flabbergasted - ~~didn't~~ ^{didn't} like the idea of Ordnance
- 24 Rang Col. Douglas - ^{who} had already put through call to G.H.
- 26 Spoke to G.I. - thought they meant to move base regardless of Establishment. Told to go on Tues. ^{and then up with to North Command +} It would see C.O.D. ~~was~~ ^{was} - Tylos. See off after lunch to Regate + E. Gristead then home.
- 27 Visited ^{several} ~~Heathfield~~ ^{via} T. Wells - Capt. Fraser - to Challock to see new Hut. On to Canterbury 0/1
- 28 Back ^{H.H.} ~~via~~ ^{via} T. Wells + W. Gristead. Mr. Fry taken to hospital after Stroke. Charles phoned that posting is cancelled - came to H.H. with David Delamer.
- 29 To Swindon Hosp. with some of the family - Mr. Fry died at 9.20pm
- 30 Collected Capt. Jarvill Smith from Swindon.
- 31 W.O. 16/16 - wed posting cancelled - could have ~~sub~~ ^{sub} ~~Colson~~ ^{Colson} and not ~~Disulata~~ ^{Disulata}; Clerks TTS returned. Comments not agreed to.

Am 6

After Mr. P's funeral, Charles, Bill, Heath + many others all stayed to lunch (H.H.)

1 Pedalled to Crawley's farewell party - (bride to be vacs - "Oxo" took her back ^{to Heli} ~~to Heli~~ in her Mk. Charles rode her bike + England took Alma!)
Bill

1942
Aug.

interest

- 2 H.G. Sports, Wickste. (Capt. Clive + "Oxo" tried to get her to throw a mill's bomb - Rounding her throwing she declined!). Saw me of the Hackwood in Wickste. Hut.
- 3 Saw $\frac{3}{4}$ Commander + G.I. at H.Q. read OTU letter saying they must choose a replacement. Vetted idea that one of nos should be chosen + Encls. told me to ask W.O.
- 4 Train to London + on to Newcastle. ~~by train~~.
- 5 Capt. Gove drove her to Blunck + saw D.C.R. Site. ^{at 4.30} Back via Dio. H.Q. Capt. G. (with ~~at 4.30~~ ^{at 4.30} "much made-up, peroxide, crimson - nailed (sc - actress?) wife took her to dinner + the theatre. Some idea that Mrs. G. would like to join us - too difficult!" taken to this us
- 6 Edinburgh - Capt. Hally + Irving does want to return to H. Peverell. Command H.Q. (Mackenzie) E. Area Cap. Nigri at OCTU.
- 7 Interviewed ^{"little"} Gallmore at OCTU. Returned H.H.
- 8 H.Q. battles about Trade Tests. had to agree to final suggestion that papers should be sent elsewhere for marking. Long session with May-Jones - lunch with ~~H. G. G. G.~~ ^{OK -} and Glanish
- 10 Wilson arrived for interview / - passed test. Rocket sent off to Eleanor - Badgeron discovered by telephone to have already gone on leave which only begins 'after duty' today!
- 11 Train to London and on to ~~North~~ ^{met by and} ~~North~~ ^{Take by} to lecture by Belgrain office - excellent. We were specially invited by Major Celling. O.N.
- 12 Train to Tamerton - Capt. CR - visit to ~~farm~~ ^{site and}

BT
D. Ex. (12)
1942

visited site of jam -

positive

Aug. 12.

~~Cap. Tracy~~ - possible heli but rely if Odeley provided -
Met Capt. Tracy + Mr. Lloyd. JN

13.

Buchland St. Mary E Capt. C.R. - Helli (much
improved) ^{visited Odeley (esp. Advises)} ^{to} Hants - Ms. 3TC - chose 3 clerks and an
Odeley. Blandford ^(Dorchester then via Capt. Hughes)
Hale - Hall. Mr. M.M. then to. JN.

14

Winchester - Records Office - caused consternation
when let me that we do not publish Pt. II Orders!
Salisbury - ~~ATS~~ ^{SAOs} Conf - Seci, machine gun, bombs
(all SAOs under ^{the} take !!!). Out to Hut - returned
Bettie's their Stamp book to be cleaned up
Hants - JN.

15

Taunton re Odeley to be attached. Lunch with
Capt. C.R. - up to Borne ^(Billed) Return to HH.

16.

Saw G.I. about retaining ATS - said she hated
them being there - hated anti-office atmosphere.
He engaged in chat ^{to her surprise} ^{May} Jones called in
about producing Segrialmen. Everything
going wrong at Taunton and Odeley at
BSE has died in suspicious circumstances.

17

Conference at Heli - ^{with} G.I. - Bill Hanta - May Jones
about move of ATS to HH. Eventually decided
but shattered by G.I.'s extreme outspokenness
on having ATS in mess (having lunch there)
Bill H. ^{having asked, assumed he} said he didn't mean ^{me} ^{of move ATS - to be glad!}

P 18

Telephoned SAEC (Stn Area Quarters)
Condi). ^{Staff goes to} Hants - spent a long time choosing
Welfare Staff. curtains etc. JN.

19

With Capt. C.R. most shuffling of personnel -
short lecture to officers at Hut. Returned HH.

20

Capt. Buckle - from SAEC - and assistants
inspected whole accommodation - passed

? Hants
? Taunton

1942

stable in Rest Room and mess but not in sleeping. Alma returned in 3.30pm lorry with masses of furniture - curtain etc - distributed to rooms. Short cycle ride.

21. Lots of sorting of (above) into in carts to O/C Barracks to collect pots + pans. ~~Cpl Caldwell~~ Pte ~~Whitford~~ Capt. Hall - Hall at 444 - leapt into his car to fight for his A/L but G.I. killed him.

22. More barrack stuff - terrific moving into rooms, making blankets etc. Major J at 444. Recreational Training for all. Dallimore arrived + passed Test.

23. Car + driver - Reginald Thompson of the last time - ^{also looking for this} H. Revelly - Lloyd. Colebeck - Capt. Childe. OTN.

24. Left at 9.30 ?? broke it to Thomas she was not a success. BSE - Michie + Shaw re Justice (Ordeley). met Freddie Childe. On to Monahan to take Yolande's present from Unit. ^{Issued} OTN at ~~Capt. Tallent's~~ ~~house~~.

25. London - AG. 16(b) + (b) - both helpful. Back 444.

26. Summoned to 444 (Arthur blown up by Capt. Tallent) to give Capt. Fringland some figures. Saw Col. Douglas + added 2 points - "most embarrassing letters" and "reprimand by senior A/S Office" ??? Showham - promised more rags - ^{by Mr. Stewart} Welfare Office. (Mrs. Wilson) gave lots of lovely things including wool + Tenikori.

27. Oxford - "A" Coy. gathering clothes + WVS.

Aug. 28

Visited Mrs. Bannock, Washford Place - in case we should move the - Attery there if her school goes - Far too many rooms. OT ^{if any that} used me BFI, clerk, car + for us are now utilized!

29

Aldershot - chose 3 cloths also Sub. Rush to replace Alma. Heavy storm - telephone down - Htl flooded ^{see lights off!}

30
^{1st new offer m course}

Visit from Maj. Jones, Charles R. + Capt. Peek (made map case for Capt. Fawkes)

31

^{Off car L} Juricon via Oxford + Leicester - Campbell D. alone. Doncast - Hilary + Sheila. ^{at doct's} OTN

SEPT 1

Capt. Shanks + Fawkes at Scotch Cornes - ^{at doct's} Had much dis cussion. ^{dinner} Capt F - returned to Htl - arrived Newcastle OTN

2

Capt. Crook called - went to Alnwick with Capt Shanks - Htelte, looking ill. ^{dinner} Alnwick train

Edinburgh by train. Tape to Htl Rosemary in red bell - Rosemary to Newcastle OTN ^{Tokani}

3 onto

S. Dalton - Jucken alone. Peek to Newark OTN ^{Charles + Capt + Mrs. Goves at 1457}

4

Returned HH. Cicely, Norris, Colson, Jane - Jane, Moss + Dallmar arrived.

5

Cross began well Charles had them almost all day. Postings decided at Htl with Maj Jones.

6

Officers at Htl all morning - map reading after lunch. Charles to tea.

7

Course progresses well. W.O. and signed posting of W.O. Hanna Holly?

8

Mr Dakey blatly 2 Sent Officer to HH. ^{collected more books for me. Harved + coal bin}

9

On ways & Course afternoon. Mr Jain arrived 9 with in concern W Gumstead - Janet 7 days leave alone with Jane to Canadian Camp last. I took about Transport return.

18

Heathfield - Barden with man beginning the sad business of taking over. Carting

10 Sept. Oxford to dump all Officer's keys
Joan + Mary - rather car. All OTs
on Rec. Training

Called in to C. Palace to see
Uncle - picnic lunch.

Conrad in Hut - "Benji" & Hillier in ATTS Mess) men to
TW - all 3 there - (Boskin much happier) OTN Home

19 K. Com' Head - Hilary said Angela was very unsat-
isfactory. Rejate ^{lunch in mess} - ^{John is white} Returned HH.

20 Charles at HH - advised me to get vid
of all the ATTS who want to go. Edinburgh OCTA
closed - Astley-Cope stay - Whitney (now
Goodman) must go at once. ? Paves-Smith

21 Train ^{to London} W.O. ^{Hobart} re Janet?? ^{OTN} ? Paves-Smith

22 " re Rosemary & Pamela ^{Called at}
No. 2 L.D) Gsp. Train back to HH.

Typewritten page 13B

P142

OCT. 22 Str. Daeta - Went South by Huel + Jerry -
To Lincoln OTN (Price 4w)

23 Left ~~9.30~~ ^{9.30} but got way completely (3 soldiers
picked up - misdirected) getting into London at 4.0
A.G. 15 - none of ^{ATTS} officers posted yet. To HH
arriving nearly 9 p.m. Camp Command. has
refused to certify that Simms is filling a
vacancy in Establishment, for trade pay.

24 Answered C. Cndt's letter - threatened to fire
Simms to Maj. Jones ^{who came round + a} Had amusing talk ^{was had}
about Dodo + Maj. Collings. ^{Shaw's go} L TO NABFI +
O/L Barracks. Fire authorized at last!

25 Telephone call from Lord Delamere + C. Cndt -
going to get Simms authorized 'subject to
Establishment' - so she won't be removed.

26 Astley-Cope, Goodman, ~~Shaw~~ ^{Shaw's go} Fosc,
Adams-Beek - Hillier's + ~~Curtis~~ ^{arrived} Curtis.

28 Mickey Brown ~~was~~ telephoned that Mary
Shaw had been knocked down by a car and
had serious head injuries. Maddern's letter
from C. Cndt. about Simms.

Found us went to CH for Tupper Canteen
Cupboard made internal ~~to~~ cracks at
Camp Cndt. + me at (DND) - ~~short~~ short.

Mr. Cse. went
with me - all interested
+ ready to hear
not thing n
alarms -
unlike very
this!

BT
D. 12th. (14)
1942

Q.P. 29
got through a good deal of work with help of John

Drove to Heli to see ~~Walter~~ ^{called to John} ~~Atkins~~ - home - Col. Dwyer + C. Andie - both ^{+ Mary Booth} telephone message that Helles is to go on Course on 6th. Rosemary ^{Atkins} will take Mary Shaw's place at Bury. ^{To Sitr Command HQ} ^{with John} ^{For} ^{at} ^{Heli} ^{re} ^{with} ^{Arthur's} ^{name} ^{of} ^{Schwartz} ^{lectures} ^{Schwartz}

30.
31

(Kid & helpful)

NOV.

1. ^{Re: to Oxford - in car -} Heli to discuss with Maj. Jones, promotions of 2 Subs. All OK except ^{Dodo} Campbell? ^{Got off work re pointing} - to be posted here come to Heli first. ^{Amusing} letter signed by G.I. to Records: "Pte. Simms caused by our Subsidiary ATIS Unit."

2. Heli - G.I. said he had signed letter without reading it - had now tried "Old Nasty" that the ATIS was no more Subsidiary than he was "!" ^(Campbell) Heli ^{is} ^{to} ^{go} ^{to} ^{Records} ^{Office} ^{to} ^{take} ^{above}

3. ^{Oxood} ^{N = Nasty} Regate - ^{we} ^{leave} ^{to} ^{Hilary} ^{Campbell} ^{then} ^{to} ^{O.C. No. 2.} ^{Squad's} ^{Car.} - will see what he can do ^{to} ^{submit} ^{Janet's}

4. To Putney - Grandmamma died yesterday.
To W.O. (Hobart Hse) - discussed Pamela

5. Goodman's possible baby. To Canterbury ^(fog) ^{Brother} [&] ^{Pratten} - ^{Patience} ^{away} ^{at} ^{Palace}

6. ^{6.} ^{Uncle's} ^{enth. movement.} ^{on} ^{Sat.} ^(7th) - seems worried. Phyllis ^{Booth} had had a letter from Eleanor about using local hotels for their ^{joint} ⁱⁿ ^{to} ^{Harnetham} - ^{rely} ^{on} ^{Peggy} ^{there}. ^{To} ^{Div.} ^{Heli} - friendly & helpful. ^{Qualms} ^{about} ^{Nancy} ^{vans} ^{Andie}. ^{G.I.} ^{decided} ^{to} ^{return} ^{to} ^{Heli}. ^{ON} ^{London}. ^{bit} ^{Grandma's} ^{funeral}.

7. Heli - saw ^{May} ^{Hart} ^{on} ^{7th} + ^{May} ^{Jones} ^{re} ^{May} ^{C.} ^{Greening}

B/T
D. Oct. (15)
1942

Nov. 20

Capt. Graves - told by Charles R. that it was? Ann's nun jacket she left Blandford. Switch Corner for lunch provided by the 3? ~~for Price~~ ^{at} a billet. To Doncaster. Eleanor in a flap owing to arrival of Maj. C. - very late! Left in the night but kept temper, and all made laughable. ON

21

Returned H/H via Oxford (A/O/S) - agreed all supplies but said we had to see J.A.M.S. To H/H to see Maj. J. - still uncertain of his line - saw also Cmdr. Lord Delaney, and Bill ~~Heard~~ ^{Hartson}.

23

Col. Smith - Piggott (U.C.) ^{understanding} shown round H/H - more of the house to be requisitioned to provide room for 22 O.R.s. and extra washing accommodation. ^{Cve. 50} tackled Mrs. Fry.

24

Left for BSE - much time spent with Michael to Police re Mary's accident. Visited hospital & saw M. O. M. Gave dinner to Michael, Yolande & Margot & ~~Philip~~ ^{John}. ON at "Angel" ~~arrived~~ ^{left} Oct 24.

25

Halstead - ^{with} ~~John~~ Gunk, spent ^{all} day in their hunt for billets. On to H. Peverell, then Colechester. ON. Cordwell left Oct 24.

26

Returned to H. Peverell - ^{arr. to} ~~talked~~ to Cully? To 'other place' with Avi & Pamela. ^{dinner at} ~~lunch~~ ^{at} ~~home~~ ^{home} but security vague.

27

~~To H/H~~ ^{Two}. First called at wing Canadian H/H of 1 Corps H/H - ^{Some} ~~L.B. order~~ ^{re directed} ~~at~~ ^{border} ~~alone~~ ^{at} ~~Regate~~ ^{at} ~~Davis~~ ^{at} ~~lunch~~ ^{at} ~~L.O.C. No. 2 Coy~~ ^{at} ~~helpful~~ ^{at} ~~about~~ ^{at} ~~their~~ ^{at} ~~being~~ ^{at} ~~attached~~ ^{at} ~~to~~ ^{at} ~~him~~ ^{at} ~~in~~ ^{at} ~~H/H.~~ ^{at} ~~Found~~ ^{at} ~~note~~ ^{at} ~~from~~ ^{at} ~~Comdr.~~ ^{at} ~~asking~~ ^{at} ~~what~~ ^{at} ~~was~~ ^{at} ~~done~~ ^{at} ~~about~~ ^{at} ~~Dodo!~~ ^{at}

1942

NO. 28

Taken to lunch by ^{Amby} - ^{arrived here}
about a job in ^{the} show.
Then to
Train to Lunda - W.O. - told whole story -
'Off the Record' of Dodo. ~~I had~~ "I had been
right" but consultation with ABIS and
MS shows no alternative but to withdraw
for lack of evidence - Returned I.H.H.

30 ^{Drive to} Salisbury ^{with} ^{Holmes} ^{Belting} ^{noted} ^{D.A.M.C.} - all
met at possible billet and ^{after 1 hour} all was arranged.
Back at I.H.H. 7.30. Saw fire beyond Marlborough

Dec

1. ^{arr. train} ^{at} ¹¹
2. ^{at} ¹¹
3. ^{at} ¹¹
4. ^{at} ¹¹
5. ^{at} ¹¹
6. ^{at} ¹¹
7. ^{at} ¹¹
8. ^{at} ¹¹
9. ^{at} ¹¹
10. ^{at} ¹¹
11. ^{at} ¹¹
12. ^{at} ¹¹
13. ^{at} ¹¹
14. ^{at} ¹¹
15. ^{at} ¹¹
16. ^{at} ¹¹
17. ^{at} ¹¹
18. ^{at} ¹¹
19. ^{at} ¹¹
20. ^{at} ¹¹
21. ^{at} ¹¹
22. ^{at} ¹¹
23. ^{at} ¹¹
24. ^{at} ¹¹
25. ^{at} ¹¹
26. ^{at} ¹¹
27. ^{at} ¹¹
28. ^{at} ¹¹
29. ^{at} ¹¹
30. ^{at} ¹¹

1 I.H.H. -
Col. Stranach - O/C Admin. S.P.D. arrived
with Capt. Bostres - ready to get ^{up} more
washing facilities. To H.H. - long talk via
Maj. Jones who agrees to withdraw about
Dodo. Collected 9 new bicycles (in back of car).

2 ^{vis. to two of units within} ^{at} ¹¹
To Essex - car loaded with ⁹ bicycles!
Cycled ^{alone} at H. Peverell 3 b's ^{then} - 3 more
at Hals head - last 3 as RSE. Dinner
with the Shaws. (Mary looked dreadful) O.N.

3 Went for Mickie & packed up Shaws
for Court. Mary's car a disaster -
prosecution missed all its many chances
& car was dismissed! Returned to
Suffolk to collect "Proceedings" from
Police ^(more) ^(at) ¹¹ ^{at} ¹¹
Mary's hotel for Court of Enquiry in her
bedroom. Returned to ^{house} ^{at} ¹¹ O.N.

4 To H.H. ^{at 3.30} Elizabeth ^{Russell} excited at possibility
of job as Educational Officer - ^{5th} ^{trip to} ^{N.A.F.I.} ^{+ Barnack}
Rang ABIS - Elizabeth is to go on ^{NCO of} ^{coal} ^{bricks} ^{on} ^{train}

14 - 20th Dec. ? Success or?
2. ^{at} ¹¹ ^{at} ¹¹ ^{at} ¹¹
Train to York - met by Dev. TO ^{at} ¹¹ ^{at} ¹¹ ^{at} ¹¹
Satchel ^{at} ¹¹ - 3 bikes. Back to ^{at} ¹¹ ^{at} ¹¹ ^{at} ¹¹

B17
D. Exch.
194

TJ

DEC. 9

... as the leaving luggage - into Alnhamstead
 where O/C Barracks agreed to all lodging dest.
 to Hut - Am chief disgruntled. Back to Newcastle
 1/ dropped bikes

11 Called at dinner
 as we were with
 same + then...
 12 all works ok!

12 To S. Dalton - ^{a new way. incl} Capt. Farver - ^{drive us} To York ^{to dinner} Rice
 (~~dropped~~ following) 1 O/N at Mary. Said "Charles
 is leaving!!"

14 HH - ^{exp. table} Rush considered to take leave + departure
 too much for granted. ^{direct} see - ^{saw} May. Jones + Bill
 Harston (Gave her a Muri!) + G.I. ~~in~~ ^{from S.I} promise
 of Halli (^{to} Sgt) in BT's office - Got letter about
 leave. Met (new R.E) - Capt. Lee

14 Hopette's post
 as we were 15
 leaving

Under by car - WO. ~~had to~~ promised to stop
 picking recruits. O/N @ Club. (Rice to Farver)
 to ^{exp} Canterbury - 3 bikes with Ronald + Billie; Ont
 Harriets Ham - 3 bikes ^{left} + ^{Angels} pathetic woman from
 Hazel + Peggy. Home O/N.

16 Health

Called on "the Margerie" - ^{Lyonic A} read alone - ^{delivered} 3 bikes.
^{Margie + Margie} Rusper. Lady Treweek. L Regate - ~~with lunch~~
 in Hut, waiting for Dovi. ^{Return} to HH -
 Seaver coming on Friday 18th. Inspected Gas
 Masks 8 p.m. Charles came to say
 goodbye. - 18th stopped to Oxford - lunch in BT's Gp. Mess - ^{Saw}
^{questing} Kit of Holby + Bennett (Club) to HQ. ^{Hopette} ^{arrived} ^{with} ² ^{dinner}

20

Session with May. Jones - Tea in Ante-Room c
 G.I, Lord) - Capt. Finlay + Lee - Mr. Patterson
 + new S.I Major? ^{was} Told May. Collings is being
 returned to Regimental Duties!! Hopette left.

21

Cem. + Mr. Stubbs at HH & small presents
 remnants of "Bundles for Britain". Spent an
 hour going round rooms with Mrs. Fry.
 On leave.

1942

- Dec 26 Letters arrived - details for 'Senior officers' Course 4-9 Jan + 15 Jan - 4 Feb.
- 28 Returned H4 (in car)
- 30 H4 ^{Drive} to Oxford to collect Stores.
- 31 (??) Rang Miss Barford abt answer to Hugman letter - it has been turned down. Have put it on to G.I.

1943

- 1 H4 - Started ~~a~~ new Card Index
- 2 Finished ~~a~~ new Daily Strengths Register. Rang AB 16(0) abt Elizabeth Rusk's - to go next Sat. (9 Jan) to Inveness. Told Doris White to report loc on Tues. Sit. M.R. Hugman came for Test.
- 3 Col. Douglas rang and asked for news as to whether AB Clerks are being fully employed. Write a letter which will put Cal among pigeons! Went to ? Taunton - (Capt. ^{arrived} Crowell - Rogers - ^{+ Capt. Straight} Supper c. Capt. ^{and back, see us} Fernick) ON.
- 4 Took Capt. C-R to Hurl ^{and back, see us} ~~Philet~~ ^{in the way} Ralph. Took Archie (who leave) ^{on} to Salisbury (Page asked to release) ^{at} ~~Wichester~~ ^{Wichester} (Pric drive off) ~~stayed in Hurl~~ ^{at} ~~to~~ ^(+ start of Sun. of 8th)
- 5 Scramble to get to ^{Sun. offrs.} First lecture of Luke - Interesting day
- 6 Visited ~~Passant~~ Col. Golding ^(records) looking into new provisions.
- 7 Messes now notes. ~~before leaving to home.~~
- 8 Revision
- 9 Rewards scan. Train to Swindon - met by Pric - Doris already installed. ^{Polmy letter} ^{has left in the evening}
- 10 H4 May. Jones came - G.I. ^{an} ~~Polmy instructions~~ completed. Col. has ~~agreed~~ ^{agreed} to ~~1000~~ ¹⁰⁰⁰ - issue of car

BT
D. Wats.
1943 (17)

O'Grady
Anson

Jan. 11
Called for by

11 Left for Oxford - Train to Newcastle. JPN
12 Capt. Grove ^{9:30} collected ^{bullet hunting} - Fred Q.C.'s home -
the Police and then the Millward who will
have ATS if we can produce a Cook - Seems
the only solution. ^{Hub - June + Olga - Ann's}
lillet. ~~of~~ ^{Did the} ^(ATS Gvp) + Cook. ^{Joined Grove party}
^{of party. OTN @ Hotel.}

13 Train back to Oxford - met by Jovis.
O'Grady + O'Connor both AWOL! Foni at
Hill for ORs. Wire from O'Grady - O'Connor
rang up - taken in - now at Sweden.

14 O'Grady returned - 3 days extra duty.
15 ^{My car and visited H.H. - he + D. O'Grady. Hacked Harry King's car and}
lillet fell off cycle + broken has use!

16 Plans for Blunich ^{fallen through} - Jovis
to go up next week (slaving was At IT orders!)
17 At 6.20 rang - Course now off until 28th.
^{to say odd was information had been posed in -}

18 ^{9:45} Grove & Pusee straight to Newcastle bpm. JPN
19 Call at Jovis. Hill. Got away + GI out. - to Blunich
Saw Ann? - temporary billet friend of Pamela?
Police offered new name - ^(Mv. Anderson) - fished up for all 3

20 to lodge but not feed. Back to Morpeth JPN
Saw GI - ^{said he} would ask but not free OC unit

to have ATS in mess of On to Blunich - Pamela?
then - lunch in hut. ^{After lunch} Met Col. Villiers - willing
to have them. Back to hut - picked up Pamela
introduced to Anderson ^{then} tea in Mess. At 5.
Left Col. V. ^{testimon + luggage}. Jovis at ^{choice} of Ex. Villiers and a
Returned to Newcastle O/N. Col. Grove who had been a
may. when she was at

21 S. Cowan - lunch & Whiting. Files + Read Fort
(F&R feel gas from home!) ^{Col. Grove boxed + had to Genk.}
Britten v. disgruntled. ^{by jam cans - cost 5/-!} Beverley O/N.

22 Pusee arrived early to say car had vanished
CMPs had taken it. ^{Went} to Mrs Coy. ^{+ CMPs} - apparently
no one had notified ^{40%} ^{his} husband ^{that} car would be
in his yard overnight. Found ea. eventually

h. Short says
e. Col. de...
offered...
Suggested...
said he would
do his best @ O.C.
Unit.

1943

Back to (H4)

- Jan. 22 ^{Wed} to ¹⁰ Doncaster - Fox + Dallimore. Mass via Oxford.
- 23 Th Drive to Hel ^{in morn} for short conference w GI, Majs June + Kirkner about microac in Establishment. GI reported BT did very well on the Revolt Course. Finally decided on microac of 25 ATB. Officer is necessary. h. Bellini to add top to Blunck on Tues. 26 w h Joan B. Gieg (to tea - Dovi went to tea E Mx. Frs! Portage)
- 24 Mr. Latham looked in + decided on partition in log room. Lot of furniture arrived. Packed + they went fairly long cycle ride after tea.
- 25 Drive to Canterbury via London - all 3? v. cheep. OTN. Hotel. (v. boring driving at 30 mph)!
- 26 Harveitham - all fairly contented. Get map ref. for Paddockhurst - (Barber not there). To home OTN.
- 27 Reigate - Mekey - Helary Olga + June. Bided time near Bagshot so a net to arrive too early for Course. Doris veng to say Paymaster is being a plague.
- 28 Each day - found stables and v. odd chaggy quiet animal for 1/2 hour. Hitched lorry back to lots of wear in the "train"!! Letter from Capt. Grews - GOC - is annoyed that ATB are in Unit Mess. Ray GI + Doris.
- 29 Visit from Maj June - sat in his car + discussed June? both annoyed. Anonymous letter from 'Dea' Hayman. Phoned + for vochals from C.O. (R. Ph.)
- 30 Left in morn to Reigate. Saw GI. (who turns out to know Geely). TO Lady Carole who has a possible Officer of m. Onto mess - long talk with Mekey - Olga - Dorothy. June. with private session. Returned for Group Conference after dinner.

23rd. Janet
 rang - Be...
 got away abt...
 leaving Bob + J. to
 go to Blunck
 on 26th

Picnic lunch.
 29. Weeper discuss
 in tent. Tried to
 30. compare...
 had to
 have been ~
 "Funder India"
 list of syndicate
 made out a
 no space
 it "how he
 so meet - miss!
 deal to give it.

31. Sunda
 Deluge
 + work base
 in year.

18th Scheme m
 Commence visit
 ATB - DAFS lecture
 after lunch
 Scheme at I
 D. Des before
 (Advised)
 Practised speech
 after.

2nd. Ch. Inst.
 in meet -
 criticism - called it "Bardaha"!

3rd Field Off. of the day - Programme as usual plus drive.
 telephoned Stables to arrive at 7.40 pm. Blue unspecified

D. B. 1943 (18)

"HAYMAN" is Clerk

Feb. 8

Telephoned A616 re office tomorrow. Official interview by Controller - "Officers who have travelled more valuable than long strings of Degrees"!

9th Almost caught up with Tartan shirt! Great night!

A new A61 - all Senior Officers must be reported in - So G.I. doing that. 11th Scheme in Messing - said what she thought about the subject to a syndicate member + lecture was just outside the door! - 48-hour break in London -

12th Two letters to JPB in attendance. 48-hour break

Back to Course - Letter from Barden saying she had refused to obey Capt. Shanker's orders.

16th Dinner - In Night followed by Juke 'Confessions' - 20

More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down. 15th More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down. 20th More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down. 21st More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down. 22nd More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down. 23rd More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down. 24th More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down. 25th More leisurely day - Catch up on notes by writing down.

17th Scheme - 21st

Back to Course - just outside Bagshot Park gates saw BU car behind - stopped + G.I. spray me + said "You're under arrest! All gone well in exercise. Day of suspense after my own reports - got a 'B'!

18th Scheme - 22nd

Left Bagshot for London. A616 - helpful + will overrule Bagford? A615 also helpful. Onto Camp 20/7/43.

23rd

Back to H4 - Dodo suddenly taken ill - could be epilepsy.

24th

New "Scheme" Statute's assembly. Off to Canterbury in H4 Staff car - Heard all about Dodo's fit from [redacted]. Saw her in hospital + [redacted] - almost sure she will be based on [redacted].

25th

26th Wenders - [redacted] letter is all 6. Then to tent - May. Jones explained Scheme. Back H4 via Dorchester.

27th

M. Latham at H4 bearing 'gifts'! 28th Joan + Davis to tea with Harms.

BT
D. Eck. 18
1943
194

Free
Hawton

CMPs had opened car & taken on Repul actors
But they were v. pleasant.

Mar. 19 Visited? Inst. Hill to leave was Establishment
then Camp Commandant about Elber - he
is an obstructionist! Return ITH.
20 May. Jones + Kinkness visited ITH. "In-Night"
read revised Standing Orders and ^{referred to} knew Batt
Roster.

22 To Doncast^e - Price all 3 there? O/N.
23 S. Dact^{er} - ^{Planned to leave lunch with} Satch Cornes ^{message to run up -} and ^{CH but no telep.} son
Darlington ^{Platten in bed!} O/N stay

24 Newcastle - Morpeth - Alnwick (Belbin)
^{James in mess - Col. Vell Pamela was engaged}
^{leathica} (Belbin's) - back to Newcastle.
25 Capt. Gough ^{looked over} Pinnerman's
house - interviewed housekeeper & no success.
Visited but. Found Capt^s ^{Gough +} Graves for lunch then
moved off complete with Stor² to Doncast^e.
O/N stay then return to ITH.

28 Decided to revise filing system - ^{worked from} 12 till
4.30pm - achieved it!
29 ^{Cap. Browne down + telephone out of order!} to do "red + blue files" with May.
^{Directs in mess} Jones, Hopkins + Tuna ^{V is nice} - both passed.

30 Seems probable that owing to drain
^{Saw Maj. Jones had top of} the run to the vicarage is unlikely.
31 Train to Ludlow. Interviewed Mr. Pybus.
^{at Harwood} Hobart House (AG 16a) about Establishment.
^{to ITH} Message received Alnwick unit is

Apr 1

(On leave)

Farnham
to meet Dora
& charming

husband

morning - where are the 3 AGs to meet?
dunch D's parents. ^{Ret at 4 tea then to Ardingley + home}
Visited ^{taken e Avis to} ITH May. ^{to the BGS} Grundy in to Caribury
(Cecily + NNVs). O/N stay in Putney.
W.O (AG. 15, 16 + 18) also asked about ^{any} his future.
Return ITH - ^{dined with} (11th) Maj. J. at ITH. ^(12th) ^{Course was planned} ^{to start Nov 1944} ^{Rang Mr. Arthur}
Salisbury (SATSO's Conf.) - ^{middle way} saw two Harkwood.
~~to ITH~~ O/N stay ^{at Camp (AG)} & Barval
- ^{at} Stor.
saw Hewlett at last!

1943

Apr. 14

Tamerton

E Hazel.

Visited both places of duty. Returned HH.

15

Drove to BSE - (Clearer, Mary + Yolande says she didn't go with E + M but with Waddy Cole - can't remember date) Maj. Jones + Capt. Oakley arrived. On to Halstead - brake cable broke -

Called at Hatfield Pers. (Mrs. Wynn) then ~~to~~ to Brentford. O/N stay. Return

(Given the Card mine + Paschke's (Sib))

19

Store Keeping Course - (Graham, Kama, Ellis Hughes, Norman Butcher, Lloyd, Ronald + Whitman's arrived). Short session E Patience just became engaged.

22

20th Great day & duplication of Pt. 4 Os etc.

Maj. Jones has chosen Graham, Whiting, Kama + Ellis-Hughes. Staff car to S. Col. Conner Newcastle - Capt. Grove long talk. O/N stay.

23

21st Sat all Officers N/O + checked equipment Present Joan + present from June.

Fenham Barracks - hour at Min. of Labour - interviewed about 20 Orderlies of whom about 18 volunteered for Alchurch were only 18. On to Alchurch - O/N stay.

24

Met Capt. Gough + rendezvous E Agent + Capt. Grove. Went to Alchurch with Mr. Theriot. Stayed at OCTU O/N.

25

Train to Alnmouth. O/N stay

26

Breakfast in Mess. Then to Hut? Back to Newcastle. interviewed excellent Orderlies. Back again to Alchurch - collected Pamela + interview with Lady R? - all amicably settled. Returned to Newcastle to Fenham for the night.

27

Called on O'Leary - Quartermaster Commandant + G.I. with Capt. Grove - (Mrs. may come into unit) Left J. S. Deedon. Found Capt. Shanks there - went up in suite over new store plan. On to York - Capt. Farver, Lee + Shanks. O/N stay

BT's
D. Eds. (20)
1943

A Brig. Barrington ~~HH~~ has
phoned ~~at 1830~~ to ask
for Pagel.

- 28 9.30 left for Dunstable and reached HH at 1830
- 29 Train to London. Interviewed Hanning (Warwood) who does not want to come into Disc. Units. Joan's wedding p.m.
OTN stay.
- 30 AG.16 re Pagel & Hanning. Returned HH
Planned move.

MAY

- 1 May. Jane came over & planned move - got all preliminary done + started.
- 2 Hard work all day on move completed by 4 pm.
- 3 ~~Teste~~ Drive to Hel - (May. Jane) printed all that Postings letters should have been "Copy" to him + Geo 2! Introduced Doris to Marcus, Capt. Lee + Frigland. Afternoon during "Instructions to Store Officers"
- 4 ~~Can Drive to Canterbury~~ - (Cueby + Norm. v. depressed about next move) OTN stay.
- 5 To Tunbridge Well - all cheerful. On to Reigate long session in Mess & very depressed. Dorothy M.M. On to Bideford - my Picilla there. ^{Dinner} Midhurst - OTN in Peterfield.
- 6 Winchester (Betty Kante). Return HH. ^{before 3}
- 8 To Oxford ^{E Price + Doris} in a vain search for 'Miss Cole' (Moral Welfare) ^{belonged clothing etc return to HH.}
- 10 Summoned to Hel by Marcus about new establishment - all planned. ~~He~~ Agreed to one ^{request} ~~provision~~ (Hobbs to HH) but others undecided.
- 11 Salisbury (SASSO Conf.) visited Hel (Capt. Oakley arrived) ^{short session with Ann E-H?} On to Exeter ^{with Elizabeth} OTN stay
- 12 Interviewed Sub. Polace - who does not want ^{of all} to come in. On to Taunton - met Archie + Mary - to lunch after lunch. Return to HH
Establishment passed.

With Doris visited
Mixed Battery
Shun around.

1943

- Ab. 15 - v. help ful.

May 13

Drove to Linton - Interviewed Robertson? Sutable.

On to H. Reveled saw Mickie. On to Colchester

OTN. ^{Mr. Bradley, Mr. Thimont to dinner at HSE.} v. exciting night - raid on Chelmsford. - lunch Nica's cottage.

14

Capt. Childs - drove to Halstead. On to BSE -

May. Collings' there. Visited Thwigham Magna

ball to BSE - Dinner in May. C. Mr. & Mrs. Bradley, Mr. Thimont, Hilary, Bekkie & Waddy.

OTN stay.

15

Saw Hilary in her new office (Mary Shaw) - will come to Hel. Return to HH

16

Called on Mr. Robertson & returned well equipped? - 18 Dec in R.I. Order.

19

Looked at a farm - possible housing for half Army if the Vicarage can maintain

the rest. Capt. Pattern looked in - Dulle's to be witness

20

^{Miss Cochran} Shrove Eve, the delightful farm house - and

Sleep 14 - on to see Lord Delamere about

the Vicarage - no good. May. Ine introduced

new Col. Ramsay - decided to have a party on 29th

21

^{back start to} ~~drive to~~ Doncaster (Barder Reid both

cheerful) Spent the night OTN stay.

22

~~Reggie Rivington's house in breakfast.~~

Visited S. Dalton - on to Scotel Cowes

Kiljibere, Moss & Wbn then Margaret

Whiting. OTN stay.

23

Left Jarkington of Newcastle ^{called on} Group Heli ATC

On to Alnwick ~~at~~ but Dorothy alone.

Tea in Capt. Gough. Atkinson v. happy & all

well. On to Berwick. OTN. stay.

24

Left 0930 ^{reached} ~~to~~ OETU 1100 - interviewed

Swan - altogether too slow & solid. Left of Cable ^{Dinner at} ~~Penrith~~ (somewhere - beyond found lovely hay-filled Bar - goodnight!

v. exciting night - raid on Chelmsford

22. relative

BTS
D. Exts. (21)
1943

(Capt. Kelly/Cvt. Plevin)

- May 25 On to Manchester - May. June on leave but a
Sub. v. heppie - To Derby (Hilary & Paddock)
Return ^{drive you back} H.H.
- 26 Capt. Patten listed in Clerk's 27 Staff car to Oxford - arranged to draw over our
Stock ^{Coffee mess} ^{& Mrs. Agg.} ^{the n to} Ordnance Dept - Capt. Sale
& Mrs. Bushy. ^{Return} ^{H.H.} Mary Shaw arrived - looking like a ghost.
28 New (woman) medical officer arrived ^(Capt. Kenney)
Inspection: - May did a lot of amendments
30 Write to Rewards about the Establishment.
31 To Oxford ^{& Doris (Mary's Char)} - interviewed Dr. Fletcher ^{& Ge. Graham}
^{sent} ^{the} ^{here} ^{to help} brought ~~back~~ ~~back~~ ~~to~~ test - both passed.
June 1 Train to London - interviewed Cpl. Hornsby
at Harrod. ^{help Doris} ^{of lunch} ^{the n to} ^(Jones's friend) ^{Fan with} ^{Physicist} ^{Wendy}
2 Interviewed Blochman & Williams at
Harrod. Returned H.H. Very amusing supper
party at the Frieland - whole Unit there.
Back to H.H. at 2 am. ^{Tried the Jones's} ^{patients} ^{have been} ^{retd to} ^{Frieland's}
3 Interviewed Blochman & Williams ^{@ Harrod} - both
passed.
4 Salisbury ^{Emar} - (SARSO Camp) - visited Hut & Hall
Am out to show ^{the} ^{new} ^{site}. Return H.H.
5 Train to London - interviewed Laurie at
Harrod - ^(likely) ^{she} ^{will} ^{draw} ^{Harrod}
6 Drove to London ⁱⁿ ^{car} - interviewed Hugh ³ - On ^{the} ^{to}
Halstead Hut (8.30) - ^{Out} ^{of} ^{Hookwood} ^{the} ^{car}. Had use of
the Op.
7 Visited Busy, Monham, & back to Busy. ^{She} ^{is} ^{dependent}
Dined Newmarket - on toward Bf & ^{to} ^{xford}.
Found 3 lovely lay-stacks near Maruden.
Runder in distance.
8 Awoken at 3.30 am. by large drops of rain. ^{Had} ^{done} ^{rain} ^{they} ^{stopped!}
Returned H.H. Interviewed CSM Reeves.
9 Conjunction way as usual near St. Albans. Interviewed CSM Reeves

26 Capt. Patten listed in Clerk's

June

Unwell

BT
D. J. D. Oct.
AES (22)

Dreker

29 Salisbury - Visited Hut & billet - gave B Jackson ultimatum. ^{Report of Petrov - called SP Dist Hqs} Returned Hqs - Maj. Jones determined to have new Station at Elgin working on 15th.

30 Lord Delamer came to tea to discuss Summs. The Commander is prepared to keep both he and Styan. HH Garden open to the public but few came - and no Americans!

Mr. Dalton visited HH

Jul. 10

Completed equipment sent to Maj. J. ~~1st~~ On leave to ~~the~~ ^{met at command} by Price & Durr. Gyles

12 Train to London - Interviewed Herbert & Gyles at Harrod & Stanton (who W/draw). Train to Newcastle - ON stay.

13 Train to Aberdeen - met by Capt. Drummond - ^{His wife is a Div. & from her} drove to Elgin. ON stay FANY Coy. ^{he bears an incredible} ^{promise of news about AFV Officers}

14 Taken to Hut ^{by Capt. J.} Sub. Jock. ^{met Joan & Nina} Discussed work at Capt. J.'s office, then to Hqs & possible billets. ON stay.

15 Train ^{seen off by Capt. J.} to Berwick. Interesting discussion in ^{which white} Carriage ~~is~~ joined on the activity of P.C. Church between R.C. Pres. & Methodist Ministers. Moved ^{Berwick} connection at Aberdeen, arrived ^{met by Price} 19.40. ON stay

16 Off to Darlington - met Widdings. On to S. ^{where he has to bid up (Arm) office} Currier then to Beverley (Michael Foster) ^{wait in his car to drive to dinner but call to Beverley ON} ON stay

17 Wrote to S. Dalton. Told by PMC how Cicely was wanted back. On to Ince - lunched in Mess & then bail to HH (7.30)

18 Telephone met ^{of orders} ^{with} Planned programme of ^{with} Currier ^{and} May.

19 Handed came - at last! was office ^{Arrived 6.0} 15th ^{Stayed} ^{with} ^{8.0} ^{with} ^{Price} ^{at} ^{Harrod} ^{at} ^{London} ^{Jock} ^{with} ^{William} ^{Blancham} ^{visited} ^{at} ^{London} ^{Jock} ^{subject} ^{arose} ^{so} ^{spoke} ^{about} ^{change}. Interviewed ^{luffie} "Harrod" at Harrod. ON stay.

← 21st ^{with} ^{Mary} ^{Price} ^{at} ^{Harrod} ^{at} ^{London} ^{Jock} ^{subject} ^{arose} ^{so} ^{spoke} ^{about} ^{change}. Interviewed ^{luffie} "Harrod" at Harrod. ON stay.

VPTO Jul. 20th

1943

~~Price~~ ^{at Havrods}

Jul. 22

Visited ^{there} Halstead - one Hackwood - Thornham - tea with Mrs. Hencke - on to Bung St E - Janet alone. Dined ATS mess, Newmarket - OTN stay

→ 20

^{E. Davis} Drive to Salisbury - saw Ceeley, met Ann & went bullet hunting in vain. Saw Quarter Commandant - Mr. Oak ^{Lee}, Capt. Lee + R.E. Sub. To Cmd. Heli + saw Camp Commandant. then to work bullets + found me. Returned HT. (8.30)

23

Left Newmarket 9 + returned HT in time for lunch. message from Maj. Ine that one officer must now sleep at place of duty - Policy involved.

24

Drive to Highwater ^{winca} to look at abandoned Camp - looked dreary + couldn't tell size with me the keys. Maj. J. to tea.

²⁴ Made new set of "Instruct ins" 26

To Regate - the V. grand. (Avis, Olga + June there). Then to Ardingley - (Peggy alone). Home for night. (Red + concert)

27

Heathfield - saw Canadian G.I. ^(Patience from to have when a baby) then to ^{to have when a baby} ~~to have when a baby~~. Truro by train to London to interview Flask. Returned to Truro by ^{Price} ~~to have when a baby~~ train to Maidstone. OTN stay.

28

Hambleton - long time there. Back to Heathfield. ^(Tegachrome) On to ^(dined) Midhurst and on to Woolbeding, stopped by Sundry - 1 dress full of Canadianis. OTN stay (in lawn!)

29

Returned to ~~HT~~ Heli for lunch - slight crisis about Heli ATS Clerks tea! ^(Maggie Bush after dinner 11.0)

30

To Heli for conference with G.I. Ine + ^(Kirkwood) about new policy - result - 2 ATS must always sleep at Duty Station. long spell with Maj. Ine about post-hyp - with Kirkwood

BT
D. East (23)
1943

Lady Robertson -
- College

Jul. 30 cont. about 6.1 at Canadian Hind. Div. A20 with
Capt. Patterson about (clerk) tea. Spent
afternoon doing new postcard - these letters.

31. Off NOLA ^{Office} via ^{Price} Eveham - Lancast - found
lovely Ban ^{before} Penvid (heavy rain!)
Disturbed night - first by Policeman trying
to car + second by ~~some~~ ^{with us in car about 8} youths who pushed
down door but were eventually persuaded
to leave.

Aug

1 V. tired after last night - after dinner
ensured (by kind Sgt) in the ^{best} ^{dept} ^{by} ^{high} ^{land} ^{road}.
Room of Kingussie Police Court! ^{Onto W. Elchies} ^(Olga W.??) ^{trache news.}

(1) 2 On to Hut at Elgin - ^{best} ^{there?} Did some ^{food} ^{new} ^{var}
hunting ⁱⁿ ^{Elgin} ^{Pruevi} ^{at} ^{College} (Lady Robertson?)

3 Busy day collecting barrack stores of the
hut. Saw Nura's bullet - Max bullet -
hunting - ^{set to dinner} ^{with} ^{Refused to} ^{College} ^{of} ^N
& Capt. Drummond ^{... talked to} ^{Lady} ^{Kro} ^{Olga}

4 Left Elgin for Fort George - (Eleanor? waiting)
+ Capt. Mann (gave ~~me~~ ³ ^{badges}). ^{Saw} ^{about} ⁶ ^{old} ^{hand} ^{July} ^{the}

men ~~after~~ ~~back~~ ~~to~~ ~~May~~ ~~and~~ ^{3rd} ^{at} ^{Elgin} ^{at} ^{Elgin} ^{at} ^{Elgin}
Very wet drive to Rest (Day + well +
Capt. Charles McIaffart) then to OC (Ed
of O/N stay. Waterhouse Brown their best
Cadet.

5 Left O/N in a deluge - ^{Called} ^{on} ^{DDATS} ^(Scott. Cmd)
on to ^{via} ^{Dumbar} for lunch
in Mess. Deluge all the way to Alnwick
(Dorothy - story of trial & Capt. Groves came
pursuing me. ^{O/N} ^{stay} ^{!!}

6 Called on ^{left} ^{at} ^{10.10} [&] ^{gave} ^{of} ^{jam} ^{with} ^{sea} ^{dries!} ^{of} ^{me} ^{!!}
Capt. Groves who said that should
be 3 at Alnwick. Per S. Dalton - (Waddy +
Eleanor) ^{Dinner} ⁱⁿ ^{mess} ^{O/N} ^{stay}

7 Went to Hut & wrote - lunch in Mess at

1943

Both V. tired

Aug. 7 contd.

Dunstable, Arrived HH Y. 15. V. annoyed by two moaning letters from Hazel + Peggy about their new moves.

8 Pile + saw Col. Douglas about getting more bodies + greater speed. Major June told ATIS couldn't sleep at zero - shattered ^{with} ~~but~~ ^{him} ~~but~~ ^{than} ~~but~~ ^{later!} him I'd get some stores at Kelgri - renewed!

10 Train to London - interviewed Oliver. To ABIS to meet Col. Douglas - both saw Director ATIS ^(Mr. Whately) together about necessity for filling establishment ^{with Col. J. Tea @ RAClub.} ^{He returns approx M19 etc!} to HH E Col.

11 Drove to Tamworth ^{with Mrs. C.} - had session with all 3 there?? ^{Picnic ground} ^{Edwards - in place} ^{+ much delayed.} 12th left 9.45 but got involved in country picnic lunch. HH at 2.0.

13 Train to London - saw Director + deputy - arranged

met Peggy + Mrs. ... lunch office clubs. ... to put some ...

now for only a month. ~~re~~ (OEU. ? AB16a ? re battle - docs. approval is being revised / Returned HH - Turner, Right Watchhouse. Return have arrived J. Cross

both left after 6.30 ... + visited themselves ...

14 Signals had new offices all day. ^{script by 1st period (document)} David Delamer and Desmond ^{Rickman} arrived to discuss Sgt. + Ann Elie - Hughes arrived. ^{contacted} ^{James} returned after dinner ^{with} Ann, May, June + Mr. Oakley. Broadcast of bar on S. Coast.

15 ~~Arrived~~ all day session of Cross at club. ^{- M. Pouch to ...} ^{Scheme?} Cross away all day, May, J. we are up in

16 Ann Gunte, Purves - Smith, Fox + Pearce arrived of Refresher Cross. ^{Mushrooming after tea!} ^{in van!}

17 Cross going well. Ann + June want to know when a relief will be sent to Regat!

18 Drove to Hill to see May, June - ^{with Desmond Rickman} afternoon on Range with Ned Fitzgibbon helping 'oxo' At 10pm ^{with} ^{Rickman} Rickman, Right, Turner picked up Ned

BT
D. E. H. (24)
1963
Aug. 18th Sat.

hhh Search in wood RAFI Unit - saw old man, in Domesday Book
house who had lost both legs - and maid at Dabham Hall - 4
miles off.

→ Oslo in barcas & all went for a navigit
Bath in lake on submerged cornfield.

~~Crossed dep. to~~ ~~from Wed. to Swin~~
Ivan to Lunda. AG. 16 to visit the 'attractive
Little Turens' Return HH.

To Wendover. tickets for 1st class, booked ('Spartan'
Tickets) - on to Bury St E - (Beldine & Kay)
Saw Hilary in her ticket then back to
Newmarket (called on AB ~~MP~~ ~~Miss~~. ON star

Picked up Beldine & off to Oxden for tickets hhh
Dropped Beldine at 3.30 left of Thurman. Back
to Bury - back to Dabham Hall ^{with} ^{my} ^{little} ^{hand} ^{with}
Philip's daughter - in last ^{of} ^{the} ^{day} ^{man}
Disrupted in the ^{city} ^{of} ^{the} ^{city}
Breakfast at Hilary's ticket then to Halstead

(Hackwoods ^{road}). Over Gravesend Ferry on to
Harwichham (Phyllis & Sally?) Maidston - ON
in Police found ticket. Price in 4w

25 Visited Hatfield - then O/K Baracho, Battle &
back to home. ^{(Price} ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{city}) ^{of} ^{the} ^{city} ^{of} ^{the} ^{city}
Newid Kings Head - stopped by Canadian's

26 Called at Ardingley then on to Regate & so
back to ~~the~~ HH. ^(27th) ^{Telephones} ^{not} ^{worked} ^{all} ^{day!}
^{Drives} ^{to} ^{the} ^{appt} ^{tea} [&] ^{used} ^{the} ^{city} ^{of} ^{the} ^{city}

29 Don's to Wendover to see about ^(28th) ^{may} ^{J. &} ^{tea}.
30 London by Mr. Ramsay's transport. On ^{both} ^{of} ^{them} ^{direct} ^{to} ^{the} ^{city} ^{of} ^{the} ^{city}

to No. 1 WOSB for lunch w. helpful discussion
Called at AB 16(0) - picked up by G1 from 11th St
House for Little.

1 Don's to Hill of Refranch Cusok. Both set off
in Wendover 2pm. met Janet & Barden
(palatial ticket) - to site (w. well rigged up &
3-in lobby ^{occupied} ^{by} ^{most} ^{mixed} ^{population} ^{of} ^{the} ^{city} ^{of} ^{the} ^{city})
Returned HH

2 Left 3.30 for Taunton. Visited ATS Coy. about
Ralph - night to the Grahams (only Priscilla

20
23
23
19. Packed up
Wendover arrived
with 2 days &
had a great time
& chance!

21. Think I
can't see did
it in the
outlook by
C. P. P. P. P.

Sept

1943

Sent. 2nd. of the 3 tier. Called on Basted O'Brien and "War from here 3 'beauts', Rife soon of job + a P. M. M.!"

3 ^{Proceed} to Salisbury ^{Tosh} ^{to pick up visitors.} } dined in mess with Ann - met Maj. Kirkness and V. young Maj. Folke at Hut. ~~with~~ ^{with} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~Div.~~ ^{Div.} picked mushrooms - drove along Coast to near Rodan + washed our dunnies (scrambled eggs + much 'saus'). Stopped by a wood + bearded RAF Sgt. J. took water - also given tea, sausages + tomatoes! Slept in truck.

4. In lovely pine wood, cooked our Breakfast brought cups of tea by RAF Regt. man. Visited Heartfield + Harriethan (met mushroom lunch in between). Heartfield went to Zero while there + Harriethan we unfailed. On Camp 20 (mushrooms)

5 Visited Wendover ^{back to camp + end} called on Regent and B. Dringy (Zero) and so home.

6 Left 9.30 for Harriethan at Zero - all going well. Found mushroom field - excellent lunch with them + fried fish. Called Heartfield + back home ^{for tea +} ~~black~~ ^{black} - buying!

7 Left for HH - found ^{lots of} mushrooms + shady ^{very} food lunch. Back to HH - many tea + Mrs. Bouverie + ^{also} ~~John's~~ ^{John's} ~~stiller~~ ^{stiller} ~~escence~~ ^{escence}

10 WO Ab. 15 - Interviewed Sub. Gregson ~~at Harriethan~~

Return HH. by train. ^{came to tea + planned} ~~discussed~~ ^{discussed} plans for new move Elgin ^{party up} ~~phone~~ = Olga had died ^{with John's stillie} lunch

13 To Incester, cooking lunch on way - tea at ac 1000

Doris returned
for
Chris + Jean
Helen's baby
for
the mill
Linda

B.T.
D/Elect. (25)
1943

see 26 A
24 B

SEPT 13 cont.

14 Switch Come cooked good dinner - arrived at NCO's school Neville's X at 8.45. O/N. Tentific alarm.

15 ^{left NCO's school} Train from Newcastle to Elgin - found Dore. A&S have posted two unknown birds want answers tomorrow! O/N stay ^{at Joan's house} ^{making} ^{odours}

16 ^{left NCO's school} Met Gt. at Capt. Drummond's - taken to aerodrome & pushed into 4-engine Lancaster bomber & flew off - terrified! ^{at 11} Landed near Newburgh - lunch by WAAF - & Adpt. produced car L station. Reached London 6.30 & found

17 H&S had done nothing! ^{Dined E. Nica + husband.} O/N stay London. Arrived at 3am by bomb going off. 16.16 Abair Establishment. Lunch Officer's club.

18 ? interviewed Cpl. York - quite unsuitable. Stayed in London Dist. H&S. Tried to get me back to Elgin by air eventually got train ^{Newcastle} at 5.30.

19 Borrowed car from Moray Sub Area - visited them. Barrack Officer's club. Visited Lady Robertson at ^{the} College. O/N stay.

20 Train at 9.16 to Berwick - met by Psie ^{O/N}

21 Capt. Crowe - cooked lunch - tea at Switch Come + then S. Dalton. Dined at General's Mess - PMC disclosed that Waddy had very good compassionate grounds for not being moved.

22 Left S. Dalton at 10 (complete in mushrooms). Visited Gt. at ^{am} Cameron about coal + Elgin. On way home met Maj. Innes ^{stopped at the top} - Reached H&S at 10.10pm - "in a daze". ^{Had porridge + scrambled eggs.}

23 ^{large areas + pay office want a report on all baggage transported a} Capt. Barber "blew in" to H&S at 2.30. ^{Warranb} ^{may sign went to Salisbury + Thame's Hill}

24 Request to Commander that Dore + Joan should each wear a ^{local} pip.

25 Visited Thomham. a ^{sea} ^{meeting at Bus-} cooked my lunch ^{again} - to H&S

23.10
24.10
25.10
26.10
27.10
28.10
29.10
30.10

B/T
D. Exts. (26)
1943

at No. 2 OCT 4

Oct. 18

Drove to No 2 Oct 4 picked up Adv. Verney - settled
the fate of Robertson ^{in way today} to be turned down.

Lunch plans

Visited AG. 15 above: Roberts + James 36
above Patience. On to Halstead - ^{Some that needed} much

19

happy. Capt. Chide to dinner. O/N stay.
L Olga + June - Had Hilary to lunch in BSE
Then to Osden (Hazel + Gregson) June to

Hotel and ^{arrived} returned to HT at 1030 pm.

20

Had ^{to Halls} dinner in ^{arrived} Halls
WO want Hilary on 28th in exchange for
Gwynne on 1st. Major J. came to discuss
this. Fox to be new Store Officer.

21

DAB has resigned - Informed by ^{Gregory} Nick + ^{Acely} Hopkins
?? S. Dalton - Tea at S. Dalton Corner - saw Margaret
Whiting. On to Newcastle for the night
(Maswell at hotel).

22

Capt. Grove came + talked. On to
Aberdeen - ^{met by} Capt. Drummond ^{in Aberdeen}
visited Hut. O/N stay at Moy.

23

^{? Acc. error} Had near-miss in a skid.
Spent all morning with 3 in Hut. (2 May) -
Tanner much ^{Drummond to lunch} improved ^{left} ^{to Edinburgh} O/N

24

Talked about break-up of our ^{with Capt. Priest} campaign
Ivan to ^{met by} Priest On to
Dunwick + Janet + Lynette - helped J.C.
flung. O/N stay.

25

To S. Dalton to see Michael Farley - V. Keen
Waddy, now engaged, should not return.
Dinner in Mess. E. with Acely in one Hut.

26

Left 9.30 + went over Hull ferry. Fog
slowed them down. Wended at 7.0. June
Barden alone. Fog so bad stayed O/N at
Thames

27

^{Priest to Oxford} Train to London - ^{collected letters from K.} Maddern
Dickens Interview
L. then met Betty Kante.

1943

Oct. 28 Visited Dumb 36 - ^{who} wait grand Peggy Brown
releg. A618. say all remaining is off.
2 ^{units} Newcastle Bullet hunting - ^{Good}

THURON

29 Capt. Graves sent car to Alnwick - lunch
& Janet + Lynette in that. Saw Capt.
~~22~~ ^{THURON} about move. Men to Alnwick
Sub. Area ^{THURON} ~~the~~ - good tea - Alnwick + etc.
NW is there as well. (Back to Newcastle ^{PH})

30
8.15 train
to Oxford
with Mrs. Jones
NW. 1

31 Drive to Heatfield ^{minutes} met Maj. Jones +
Dickens ^{L. Callum at home on the way} was discussed / Mrs. Whately
new JATS. ON at home. ^{to take the Graves to theatre.} Mrs. Whately
Petrol to get each supplied
by Canadian Unit.

Drive to Ardleigh - Bellini + Kay
visited local ^{upset them by saying same would not be!} ~~Sanrach~~ office about Elsa
On to Reigate - ^{enched with the} saw Mrs. Waddy + Pamela.
Back to HH. Took Joan + Joan to Oso's

farewell party. 6 candidate arrived
Cress. Cent. Hancock + Neale at HH.

2 May. Jones came to ^{tea} discuss ^{planned} ~~plans~~
new move and decided to give Dickens
an adverse report. ^{much telephoning + wire} after he left.

3 Drive to Htl to see C.O. - well back up
Bad report on Dickens. ^{met on way back + asked him to} ~~Mr. Shaw~~ over HH tea
& discussed many points including ^{the} ~~the~~
car - when he to go. G. J. S. + O.C. Cigs
have been told to pay a transport when
she goes North. Got off Postny Instructions.

4 May. Jones rang up to say Heatfield is
closing. Came ^{to tea} ~~we~~ + everything re-
~~arranged~~ arranged. ^{by a much telephoning + Mrs. M.V.} He, Capt. Hancock + ~~last~~ Oakes
Cress ^{came with}

5 ~~At~~ ^{At} ~~Range~~ ^{Range} ~~after~~ ^{after} Capt. Oxon
+ Hancock there. Did well in
his and a revolver

B/T
D. E. S.
1943
(27)

Nov. 5. contd.

the badly in Stangun. Before dinner the
General rang up from Watchfield to say
that he + Capt. Hancock were at RAF party
the nurse go - It sent transport ~~7.30 pm~~ ^{arrived at} ~~Croft~~.

6.30
Aunt
left

8 NCOs meeting at 6.30 pm.

9 Ptes meeting. Car sent to meet Betty
Dicken at 1800 for adverse report - did
not come.

10 Rang Kelly Hill - Betty ^{had} ~~had~~ slept in lullaby
" Muriel Vaile - no news. Drive we ^{after lunch} ~~met~~

1
dined at
home

Kelly at Heatfield at 9.30 PM found Betty
gassed. Rang Hill + Sigs from Hut. Mr.
Dahy + Freddie arrived with Lmer at 12.30
Mr. O drove ~~my~~ ^{his} car + ~~we~~ ^{we} both stayed at
the home (Chailey) TN.

11 ^{part met} Mr. Dahy ~~was~~ to drive + then Battle
in Crown. Gave Kelly lunch + then saw
Police. Drive to Reigate - lady C ^{most} ~~we~~
helpful. Dined in Bus + Dinner in ^{Muriel} ~~at~~

12 ^{W. J. H.} Cleared Hut + Betty then met D. Vaile
+ Mrs Perrin (Nurse) - took them to Police
then to Inquest from which Press excluded.
Packed all Betty's belongings ^{- Mrs P} ^{+ all} ^{them.} TN at home.

13 Drive to Heatfield + collected luggage
^{enched in Hay. H. H. H. H.} ~~the~~
dropped it at Mrs P's in Alderholt. Ball

14
may
J. to tea.

15 to H.H. ^{(Private) /} ^{hospital case}
^{was a food deal.}
L/O Shaftesbury and then Salisbury to
Stationary Supply. Visited Hut ^{by} ~~at~~ ~~Barrow~~
shown ~~the~~ the Super Zero. On to Rowland
Office - v. helpful. Near to Ames about changing
his mind - Mickie to come as Stox Officer.
T. J. H. from the Command ^{Plus Col. Way - H.H.} ^{at 9pm}

1943

Nov

~~Notes~~

- 16 ~~I~~ Went to funeral, (B D's) & Doris - U. quiet
Cremation at Brookwood. Spoke to no one.
Doris's home for tea
- 17 Inquest Proceedings arrived - saw Maj. Jones
at Htl. Afternoon spent doing new move
letters.
- 18 Sent off Batteries + surplus stores. ^{Had letters from Di Value + Mrs Perrow}
brings by Mr. Oakley. Olga says that
Heather Bell has had a heart attack.
- 19 To Htl with Doris, Avis ⁱⁿ car loaded with
returnable stores - in Court of Inquiry.
Capt. Neale - President. Mr. Oakley and BT
only had to certify accuracy of Inquest
Proceedings. Saw Capt. W. Bayntun's office until went with Mrs. D
to mess for coffee. Capt. Neale, Doris + Avis joined Doris left after Aug
- 20 Mind becomes numb and shuts ~~off~~ ^{up}
from tragedy.
- 21 Maj. Forbes called + drove ^{BT} to Tamworth.
by train Lunched at the Finglands (he goes to
Norfolk on Thurs. 25th) then visited AFB
in Zero Hut for an exercise. OTN stay.
- 22 Left 9.30 for Salisbury ^{May's time lunch then} long talk in
office at Amn. To Hut (Hazel + Peggy). Returned
Htl. Doris has written to say she wants to leave the Unit
- 23 ~~Drove to Rayat via~~ ^{To Price drive to} Farnham ^{Shattered!} (D. ^{dropped} ^{at Htl} ^{in taxi} ^{Rayate})
Lunch at mess at Amn, Ann Gunde, Pam King
+ Waddy Cole. Visited Htl then to Ardleigh
(Bettine + Peggy) OTNs at home.
- 24 To Severn Oaks ^{dropped} Wendy + Mr. Oakley ^{as guests} + loaded
car + bicycles etc. Visited Keith + Delia at
Harrietsham. On to London. ^{Petrol stopped in maid's sta} ^{but 2 'Redcaps' fixed it} OTN
- 25 ^{Price came at 10am} OTN @ Portsmouth Club - Price ^{is} ^{fixed}
Interviewed Cordwell at Havod. OTN
- 27 3.50 Train to Newcastle - How late.
- 28 Talked to Maj. Forbes + Capt. ^{THORON?} ^{at} ^{their} ^{breakfast.}

1943

Dec 12

Still feeling ill - more spots. Tracked down MO - admitted Suffolk General Hosp. with chinkin-pose.

20 Allowed out to shop + get Warrant (Rly)

21 Left hospital at 11 J Station. RTO reported room bashed at King's X in lounge by Area 111.

22 Met up with Dori - Lord Delamere ^{also} on the same train - 3 vehicles to meet train at Swindon!

23 Back to London by train. ~~on leave~~
on leave

4
Jan 5
8

met by Price in new car (Ford 303 saloon)

~~Price drove~~ Off to Doncaster with Price 10.30 /
arrived 4.30

Margaret W + Margrie F. Epping met Exercise Capt. Shanks + Frizland then. Need had a long tale of Dorothy M.M. JN stay. Price in Hotel. Abbey

(M) Madetham called - promised elec. L.M.

9 To S. Dalton - met Tom (Shanks) + visited Zero. ^{Had Price and E Price returned with} In stay at Doncaster - (Dunne's Red + Capt. ^{Peter} Folke)

10 Called J Peter ~~(Folke)~~ + left 10.30 - lunch in Stamford - tea + RASC ^{more tea} ^{and} ^{Petrie} ^{at} Wendover. Home HH by 6.30

11 Off to Salisbury (SATSOU Conf). Visited Mickie, interviewed VAD Clarke (Sister of man in ^{ARMY} Div.). ^{To} Statutory Office for ^{more} Supplies.

Spent ^{some time at} S. Conrd Hll. trying to see a WOL about ~~the~~ ^{HH's} accommodation. To Hut for tea. 3 hrs. drive back to HH in fog.

13 Pte Hay of interviewed at HH - taken to Hll for Test. which she failed. ^{with} May. Ines discussed new room + Dorothy M.M. Cordwell + Knapp arrived for Cure.

14 Cars washed at Hll. ^{over after tea} May. Ines came to the new ~~room~~ ^{at} Hll. ^{to} lunch.

1944

in separate page
with Pmc

Jan 26 cont

Packed lunch then to London - AG.19 - not need news about Civil Affairs. AG.16 - Controller Washing told her she would be moved in Feb. no hope of getting Dora in. ON stay.

27

Talked to Dora at Portsmouth Club - visited AG.16 + arranged to take St. Cath. Dora for interview by Co. a Friday (tomorrow) ^(looked at + v. pathetic) will move. ~~will be relieved if letters are dealt with in due course~~ ^{at Derby - pleased} ^{understand} ^{day} reached Halesstead late ^{at F. Child's} ^{late} ^{at} ^{dinner} in Rosemary Thorow's house. On to ^{Prison in W.} ^{at} ^{see} ^{me} ^{be} ^{buying} Dora. ^{3 hrs delay until 10pm} - to see ^{me} ^{be} ^{buying} Dora.

28

visited office - Mr. Thurnt disordered food store - then Osden + back to London.

with man a left hand lunch + beer
galk with Mary worked hard all day on 30
worked till 12 noon lunched alone in Mary's kitchen
Epp

AG.16 to pick up St. Cath. Dora. ^{Tea delight} ^{Transit} ^{at} ^{Hill} ^{Camp}.

C.O. (discussed with) Blumich + Dora. "More like a Nanny" - he evidently agreed as she turned her down. Back to Hill.

To Tamworth ^{Office} ^{Anniversary tea} ^{at} ^{E. Graham (holiday)}. Delighted to be going to Osden after making leave. Met new TO - Capt. Ingrams - very ineffectual. ON stay.

31

Ralph has asked to be moved but I think it is wise what at Osden. Called on ^{her} ^{Peter} ^{Office} about bicycle repairs ^{at} ^{Hill} ^{Camp} Commandant. ^{at} ^{Hill} ^{Camp} Commandant. left Tamworth for Hill.

Feb 2 AG.16 very ^{to} ^{ask} ^{officially} in result of Dora's interview. C.O. said he had never been told officially she was coming + proposed to take no further action but he'd seen Mr. Whatels! ⁱⁿ ^{alliance} ^{to} ^{Oxford} ^{hand} ⁱⁿ ^{Biscomb} ^{at} ^{to} ^{Barvack} ^{at} ^{et}

BT (30)
D. Edw. 1944

Feb. 3

With Mary - did a lot of stencils
Alois asked for her to go up on Sat. (5th) about

4th day
desire to see
a lot of
amendment.

6th finished all
amendment.

9th Dora's at
Dundee
Jones - H.H.

10th Dora's at
Dundee
Jones - H.H.

VAD Club - well-attended. Came to Hilary Paddock's wedding
9:00 train to London
Alois - then to Holy Trinity, Parsonage
Hilary Paddock's wedding - Wendy (also engaged)
Hilary Graham also there. Return HH

Sent letter to C.O. applying for Civil Affairs.
Salisbury (8th 150 Club) the To Hut - where message
received ~~to unit~~ Alois (6) - want Confidential

Report on Dora & 5 officers are to be inter-
viewed on Sat. (12th). Spent a long time
testing weights etc. Mr. Gaverin.

Sent Conf. Rept. on Dora to C.O. who telephoned
me re petrol coupons handed in at
Cardiff by a Mr. Jenkins from Pembroke.

Wrote a statement.
To Inca - tea in Hut & theatrical - a
second tea with Lt. Col. Lambert, with Mrs
& General staff of Colonel's camp. Much lamentation
over departure of Majorie. On to S. Dalt
first to Hut & then to dinner & Waddy's
discarded frame, Lord Allenby & Clarke
(brother of VAD), O/N S. @ Inca

Return to London - interviewed Moore,
Cheaney, Spears & Peek at Hobart House
(Spears' house) - Peek, for CSIC (ME) did not want to come - Moore & Cheaney
Moore & Cheaney interviewed HH Monday (14th)
interviewed in Mon. 14th

Return HH by 1915
To Salisbury - Visited at Zero - returned to
Hut after dinner at 9.0pm - joined by
May Jones who returned her to hotel

May J. & May Forbes visited ~~the~~ ^{at Salisbury} ~~then~~ ^{again} ~~return~~
back to HH.

New Lt. Col. Bond - came over. With Mary to
Susan at 11. After lunch left at 3 for Hut (5pm)

Cpx. Ryan
going to have
a baby.

14

15

Nov. (31)
1944

Div. Pres. 1

Nov. 2

Staff car ~~with~~ with Dore were to London
(Ned Fingland lunches at same place) introduced
Dore to AG 16(a)+(b) AG 15 + Demob. 3(b). Dore put
up Crooms (porting changed the am) + on to
Halstead - said fodge to Pucilla + Clifford
+ on to BSE. O/N stay.

3 To Monham. Saw lady Melford (Dalham)
re coal - ^{lunched} Wendy, Joan Pratten + friends.
Visited O/C Barracks and on to dinner.
O/N stay.

4 date start 3.30 - ^(car would start) had to wait over an hour
for Ferry - reached S. Dalton 7.15 - ^{asked to} had dinner
in the Mess ^{Nov 20th in York so} then on towards Newcastle -
at Nurlee's X, terrific skid, impaling the
car on a bus-stop notice. NCOs school
kindly took all in of its night.

5 workshop came and attended to car ^{Thouon's}
Newcastle by train - met by Capt. ~~Thouon's~~
car in Blunich. Called on Hel Coy
visited Hut - ^{Tea at} by car to Reservoir. ~~at~~

Train to Edinburgh. Mr. Bradley came
talk. O/N stay.

6 Visited Hut - lunch ^{lunch} Capt. Gally + Mr. Bradley
then on to Darlington ^{by train} (110) Whitby there to
meet. Dore met us at Newcastle - ^{with luggage}
saw Tom (Shanks) there + visited Hut.
Margaret dined with us.
O/N stay

78 Left 9.30 - lunched in Mess at Durham
then bath to H.H. Boehm's posted Jim
Ofer. School - ^{with 9th} Phyllis Portman's ill.

8 With Dore to HQ to make a statement
about the car accident. Talked to
Freddy Chide ^{who} installed as G.F. At 6.30

1944

Mar. 8

most of HH, but not the C.O., arrived for farewell party. ^{GT} - Sapper Jones + Osco left to leave!

9. With Price + Davis to Tamnra via Cheddar.

Visited Huel - ^{met} Kitty. After dinner, drink + Kitty a Capt. from D.C. Hill, ^{introduced} + ^{Davis} Capt. Gower ^{intok. c.}

10. Left Tamnra ^{9.30} called on ^{Col. Golding (O.I. records)} ^{Office} in Winchester - found Betty Kunter ^{high} Back to Salisbury ^{put Jones} - F. Child + Capt. Hall - Hall.

Returned to HH for dinner + the Jones's.

11. The Commanders' Cam are - description

Parachute jumping! With Davis + many dived + Mrs F

12. Cut up ^{the maps} maps given by Osco.

13. Left HH at 11.15 ^(over) + car loaded to the train.

^{officer by Davis + Price - having wheel change.} ~~After picnic lunch~~ ^{disconnected it} ~~horns~~ ^{inserted} started + undid stop, Baker's van ^{to garage} - ^{waited} ~~while it was mended~~ + ^{put it on again.} ^(Sussex Graph)

Reached Hayward Heath at 7pm and at last found Thers. All very welcoming. Nee's room (f + c - radiator + electric fire)

20 Mar. 44 - Men Meeting - elected PMC, Mess Secretary + general store.

25 Apr. 44 - All travel from Pontari (abroad) banned after 27th Apr.

19 May 44 - John Collins turned up in Sussex Drinks at ~~Sussex~~ ^{Sussex} Hotel? (H. Heath) told her lot of amusing things (supposed to have said to the Commander "Slap + tickle be damned" over Dworty MIM affair. Met Dodo Campbell off train (after JC had left) + dined with her (? Banned area)

14 Jul. 44. Porters to Grenford COB (sp. as 2 1/2 - report 17th)

to new location!
 ~~London~~

 left heart "Belton" + Mrs Fry at her request.

Addenda to p. 31 Contd.

16. Jul. 44. 6.30pm - Osco, capt. Ina RE arrived & ~~Sp~~ Mappin - Aux. Units S/D is packing up - very sad. Discovered job seems to be mainly welfare - no admin at all

22 Jul. 44 - After lunch was asked if she would speak to ~~John~~ ^{Captain} Hells - (James "John Hells") wanted me to do something for Keith (interested & his own marvellousness)

25 Jul. 44 - Saw Lady Lawrence (Linda Dr. H.L.) v. sympathetic & agreed may be getting labelled "NOC enough (S.D.)"

30 Aug. Plant Parade at NO. 2 OCTU (Widson) Organized an arrival - by 23 Aux. Units.

Sept. 5 - ^{2nd} Doris met up for lunch afternoon - Saw BMC + ~~the~~ ^{the} - Cwva AG 16(8). Back to Unit with Doris, Edes + Rorie.

20 Sept. ⁴⁴ - Now a C.O! Osco attended ^{cos} h Conference to raise ^{last} ~~last~~ ^{last} ~~last~~ ^{last} about food for non-dining members.

27 Sept. Took Osco to Meebank?

7 Oct. Had lunch & Alma at WOTHU - after lunch in walked Betty Kante, also a draft of Canada - took them out to tea.

11 Oct. Met at OCTU by Cicely & Waddy. Afternoon & 15 Aux. Units.

15 Oct. Left by car reached Transit Camp at 6.30 - Hill, Alexander, Thompson + Clark-Rabray etc. H+A very worried hearing nothing about Course beginning ~ 18th. Advised ~~them~~ ^{kill + angry} to ask about their ? AOC Course tomorrow.

17 Oct. ⁴⁴ Drunk in Piccadilly Hotel - Major June.
M&K told their course is cancelled - Rang

? WO to see if anything can be done.

25 Oct. Mary + Kitty arrived ~~to~~ there on 10 days' instruction

12 Nov. Posted to Harlescott Group, Shrewsbury w/ef
17 Nov.

45
23 Feb. JIC McPherson arrived wearing ^(46 Straws) G.I. flat
knew of Aux. units as "The ~~Black~~ + Cloak
& Dagger boys".